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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL]

To

All Hon’ble Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC

Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2023

Dear Sir (s)

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements including Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the

year ended 30 June 2023 along with notes thereon for your kind information and record.

Yours sincerely

A4 Aaa
( Ali Absar)

Company Secretary
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Core Value

For our Customer
To become the most efficient Company by providing the most courteous and efficient

service in every area of Bangladesh.

For our Employees

Promoting the well-being of the members of the staff.

For our Shareholders

Ensuring fair return on their investment through generating stable profit.

For our Community
Assuming our role as a socially responsible corporate entity in a tangible manner

through close adherence to national policies and objectives.

To ensure energy security in the country through the uninterrupted supply of

quality petroleum products at the government's fixed price.To strengthen the
supply of environmental-friendly and excellent agrochemical products in

order to increase the nationwide agricultural production.
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Our Mission

To ensure and adequate supply of fuels through the purchase, storage
& distribution of petroleum products throughout the country with the

organized management system.

@ Development of petroleum related infrastructure.
@ Modernizing the marketing and operational activities of the Company.

@ To make creative business policy and diversification of products

according to market demand.

@ Undertaking necessary steps through import, manufacturing, storage,
distribution with an organized management system to supply

agrochemical products throughout the country.

Strategic Priority

To have sustained growth, broaden and improve the range of products and services in
all areas of Bangladesh to add increased value to shareholders' investment and offer

the highest possible benefit to our customers.
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‘ Company Profile ‘

Corporate Headquarter : Padma Bhaban, Strand Road,
Chattogram - 4000, Bangladesh
Dhaka Liaison Office : BTMC Bhaban (10th Floor), 7-9 Kawran Bazar,

Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
Main Installation . Guptakhal, Patenga
Chattogram, Bangladesh
Year of Incorporation : 27 April 1965
Business Line :  Procurement, Storage and Marketing
of Petroleum Products, Lubricating &
Greases, Bitumen, LPG and Marketing of

Agrochemical Products

Listing Status : Public Limited Company

Stock Exchange Listing : Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.
Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC

Authorized Capital : Taka 1000 Million

Paid-up Capital : Taka 982.33 Million

Number of Shares : 9,82,32,750

Number of Shareholders : 8945

Number of Employees ;879
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Historical Events of POCL

Padma Oil Company Limited is not only the biggest but also the oldest with its antecedents stretching
well back to the colonial period of British-India. Its ancestral enterprise 'Rangoon Oil Company'
established petroleum business in this part of the world by the middle of nineteenth century. Following
is a Synopsis of Padma Oil Company Limited's historical background:

A In 1874, Rangoon Oil Company was registered as a Joint stock company in Scotland having its main
business activities in Burma (Known to the British until the later years of the 19th century as
BURMAH, which was a province of the then British India)

A In 1885, Rangoon Oil Company was reconstituted and reformed as Burmah Oil Company. Business
of this Company was then spread over other provinces of British-India including Assam and Bengal.
The Company's Head office was at 191 West George Street, Glasgow, U.K.

>

Burmah Oil Company for the first time introduced drilling equipments for the exploration of oil in
Burma in the year 1888. Previously oil was being collected in Burma by hand dug well.

Burmah Oil Company established their 'Moheshkhal Oil Installation' at Chattogram in the year 1903.
In 1908, Burmah Oil Company conducted a geological survey in Chattogram.

In 1914, Burmah Oil Company drilled a well at Sitakunda, Chattogram.

> > > >

In the year 1920, M/s Bullock Brothers, a major distributor of Burmah Oil Company established their
trading office at Sadarghat, Chattogram.

>

In the year 1929, Burmah Oil Company took over the office of Bullock Brothers at Sadarghat,
Chattogram including 4.1 acres of land and established their own office in it.

A Before the partition of the sub-continent in 1947, mainly two oil marketing companies namely
Burmah Oil Company (BOC) and Burmah Shell Oil Storage and Distribution Company (BSOC) were
operating petroleum business in the area that is now comprised of Bangladesh. Burmah Shell
established an Aviation Depot at Tejgaon Airport in the year 1948.

A Considering the Oil Marketing situation in erstwhile East Pakistan, Burmah Shell transferred their
share to BOC and in the year 1965 a new company called 'Burmah Eastern Limited' was formed with
49% share of BOC. The rest portion of the share was issued to public & private individuals in
Pakistan.

A In 1977, Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation.

A In the year 1985, BOC transferred its entire property in Bangladesh (including share of Burmah
Eastern Limited) in favour of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC).

A As per terms of the transfer of BOC's entire share to BPC, Burmah Eastern Limited was required to
change its name and as such subsequently the Company's name was changed to 'PADMA OIL
COMPANY LIMITED' in the year 1988.
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NOTICE OF THE 54" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 54th Annual General Meeting of Padma Oil Company Limited will be held on Saturday, 20th
January 2024 (06 Magh 1430) at 11:00 AM. virtually by using Digital Platform (Link:
https://padmaoil54agm.digitalagmbd.net) in pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Order No.
SEC/SRMIC/94-231/91 dated 31/03/2021) to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To confirm the minutes of the 53rd Annual General Meeting held on 1st January 2023;

2. To receive, consider and adopt the directors report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2023 together with
audited accounts for the year ended 30 June 2023 and auditors’ reports thereon.

N

To approve dividend for the year ended 30 June 2023;
To elect/re-elect Directors; (In terms of the relevant provision of Articles of Association)
To appoint statutory Joint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2024;

AN

To appoint practicing Professional Accountant/Secretary for issuing certificate regarding Compliance of Corporate
Governance Code and fix their remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2024.

Special Business:
L. To consider and adopt the increase of the remuneration of Board of Directors to Taka 18,000/~ (including Tax and VAT)
per meeting attended.

To consider the proposal, clause 109 (a) of the Articles of Association has to be amended.

Proposed Resolution

Resolved That “The remuneration of board of directors shall be increased to Tk. 18,000/- (Eighteen thousand) including
Tax and VAT from TK. 8,000/- (Eight thousand) per board meeting attended and amend clause 109 (a) of the Articles of
Association as noted below:

Existing Clause of the Articles of Association To be amended as and substituted by

109 (a) “The remuneration of the Directors shall be | 109 (a) “The remuneration of the Directors shall be

Tk. 8,000/- per meeting attended.” Tk. 18,000/- (including Tax and VAT) per meeting
attended.”

2. To consider sale of 11.627-acre land to Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) to ensure the energy security.

Proposed Resolution

Resolved that “To ensure the energy security of Bangladesh 11.627-acre land including various infrastructural and trees at
North Patenga mauza, Chattogram, Main Installation of Padma Oil Company Limited to Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation
(BPC) for “Installation of ERL Unit-2” will be sold for a sum of TK. 177,07,22,548/- (One hundred seventy-seven crore
seven lac twenty-two thousand and five hundred forty-eight) only.”

13 Poush 1430
28 December 2023

Strand Road, Sadarghat, "4l @'_WL

Chattogram. Ali Absar

Company Secretary

By order of the Board of Directors
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Notes:

01. Record Date:
The Record Date was 28 November 2023. The Shareholders whose names appearing in the CDBL Depository Register and

Share Register of the Company on the Record Date will be eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting and receive the
dividend.

02. Proxy:
A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his/her

behalf. In order to be effective, the Proxy Form duly signed and stamped of Taka 100/- must be submitted at the Company’s
Registered Office not later than SEVENTY-TWO HOURS before the Meeting.

03. Election of the Shareholder Director:

a)

b)

d)

04.

05.

The shareholders except BPC from remaining shareholders who are Bangladeshi national having 2% shareholding on
the paid up capital of the Company are eligible for participating in the Shareholder Director Election. Nomination paper
for Shareholder Director Election is available at the Registered office of the Company from 28 December 2023 to 04
January 2024 during Office hours;

The nomination paper duly filled with information and signed with relevant supporting papers should reach the
Company’s Registered Office, Strand Road, Sadarghat, Chattogram by 10 January 2024;

The Last day of nomination paper withdrawal is 14 January 2024;

The final list of eligible candidates for Director after scrutiny will be notified in the Notice Board at the Registered
Office of the Company and website (www.pocl.gov.bd) on 17 January 2024.

The Hon’ble Shareholders will be able to submit their questions/comments and vote 72 hours before commencement of
the AGM and during the AGM. For login into the system, the Hon’ble shareholders need to put their 16-digits beneficial
owner (BO) ID number/5-digits Folio ID number and their share number by visiting the link
https://padmaoilS4agm.digitalagmbd.net

The Annual Report: 2022-2023 of the Company in soft form will be sent to the e-mail address of the respective
shareholders as have been found available in their BO Account with the Depository. The said Annual Report is also
available in the website of the Company (www.pocl.gov.bd). In addition, the sharcholders may collect the Annual
Report: 2022-2023 from Registered Office of the Company by submitting written request beforehand.
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Bashudeb Ganguly
Retired Additional Secretary to Govt. of Bangladesh
Independent Director, POCL Board

Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque
Director (Finance), BPC
(Joint Secretary to Govt. of Bangladesh)
& Director, POCL Board

Board of Directors

Md. Nurul Alam
Secretary
Energy and Mineral Resources Division
Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
& Chairman, POCL Board

Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim
Retired Joint Secretary to Govt. of Bangladesh
Independent Director, POCL Board

Md. Zakir Hossain

Joint Secretary

Energy and Mineral Resources Division
Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
& Director, POCL Board
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Board of Directors

Md. Tarikul Islam Khan Suzadur Rahman
Joint Secretary, Finance Division Director, POCL Board
Ministry of Finance
& Director, POCL Board

Kutubuddin Akhter Rashid Md. Ma,SUd‘_" Rahman
(Representative of United Enterprise & Co. Ltd.) Managing Director, POCL
Shareholder Director, POCL Board & Director, POCL Board

Ali Absar
Company Secretary
& DGM (Finance)
Padma Oil Company Limited
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Brief Resume of Chairman

Md. Nurul Alam

Secretary

Energy and Mineral Resources Division
Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
& Chairman, POCL Board

Mr. Md. Nurul Alam joined as the Secretary of Energy and Mineral Resources Division under Ministry of Power,
Energy and Mineral Resources on 28 August 2023. Before joining here, he served as Additional Secretary & Joint
Secretary of Power Division under Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources from April 2019. He, a member
of B.C.S. (Administration) of 13th batch, joined Bangladesh Civil Service on April 1994.

Mr. Md. Nurul Alam was born in a reputed family in Jamalpur District. He completed his Master’s Degree (MSS) &
Bachelor Degree (BSS Hons.) from the Department of Sociology, University of Dhaka. He also obtained his 2nd
Master Degree in Governance and Development from BRAC University in 2006.

Mzr. Alam served in different Ministries and Divisions in different capacities. In his career in civil service for about 29
years, he achieved vast experiences in field administration as Assistant Commissioner and Upazilla Nirbahi Officer. He
also experienced Ministry of Public Administration, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Ministry of Water
Resources, Implementation Monitoring & Evaluation Division (IMED) and Finance Division. In addition, he served as
the Director of Prime Minister’s Office from 2014 to 2019. Prior to that he worked as the Private Secretary to the
Honorable State Minister for the Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources during 2009 to 2013. He was one
of the Directors of the Board Directors of Dhaka Electric Supply Company (DESCO), Karnaphuli Gas Distribution
Company Limited (KGDCL), BIFPCL and CPGCBL. He also served as the Chairman of the Board of the Directors of
Electricity Generation Company of Bangladesh Limited (EGCB), West Zone Power Distribution Company Limited
(WZPDCL) and Bangladesh Smart Electrical Company Limited (BSECO).

Mr. Alam actively participated in various training courses at home and abroad. He participated in Professional
Development Program on May 2019 at Duke University, USA. He also received training arranged by KOIKA, JICA
and other reputed International Organizations on Procurement, Strategic Management, Project Management and
Development etc.

Mr. Alam is married in his personal life and blessed with a son and a daughter.
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Brief Resume of Directors

Bashudeb Ganguly

Retired Additional Secretary

to Govt. of Bangladesh

& Independent Director, POCL Board

Mr. Bashudeb Ganguly, a retired Additional Secretary to the Govt, joined in the Padma Oil Company
Limited on 28 December 2021 as an Independent Director. He obtained his Bachelor's and Master’s
degrees in SOIL SCIENCE from the University of Dhaka. He also obtained an LLB degree from the
World University of Bangladesh.

He was a Cadre Service Officer belonged to BCS-Administration Cadre and served the govt. for about 30
years. During his govt. service, he held different positions in the capacity of Magistrate 1st. class, Ps to
Commissioner, RDC, NDC, Upazila Nirbahi Officer (UNO), Additional District Magistrate (ADM),
Additional Deputy Commissioner (Rev) and Deputy Secretary. The senior appointments from 2009 to
2017 include Director General, Bureau of Non-formal Education (BNFE), Additional Secretary, Ministry
of Health & Family Welfare (MOHFW), Director (JS), National Housing Authority, Ministry of Housing
& Public Works (MOPW).

During his tenure in the Govt. service, he participated in several training programs, attended various
seminars at home and abroad, and led the team as head of the delegation.

Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim
Retired Joint Secretary to Govt. of Bangladesh
& Independent Director, POCL Board

Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim, a retired Joint Secretary to the Govt., joined in the Padma Oil Company
Limited on 27 February 2021 as an Independent Director. Besides this position, he heads the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) & Audit Committee of the company. Having an honours degree in
ECONOMICS, he did his Master's in the same subject from the University of Dhaka.

He was a Cadre Service Officer belonged to BCS-Administration Cadre and served the govt. for a period of
32 yr.6 months. During his govt. service, he held different positions in the capacity of Magistrate 1st. class,
Special Magistrate, NDC, Upazila Nirbahi Officer (UNO), Additional District Magistrate (ADM) ,
Additional Deputy Commissioner (ADC ), Deputy Commissioner (DC), Deputy Secretary and Joint
Secretary. Before joining the Cadre Service, he worked as a senior officer and a planning Officer at the
Bangladesh Krishi Bank for about 4 years.

During his tenure in the Govt. service, he participated in several training programs, attended various seminars
at home and abroad, and led the team as head of the delegation. He performed the holy Hajj in 2015.

Apart from this regular duty, he has a passion for writing novels and short stories. He has 2 novels published

in the Ekushey Boimela and a compilation of short stories and travel notes is in the process.
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Brief Resume of Directors

Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque
Director (Finance), BPC

Joint Secretary to Govt. of Bangladesh

& Director, POCL Board

Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque joined Padma Oil Company Limited as a Director on 05-07-2021.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee as well as the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(NRC) of the company. Mr. Hoque is a Joint Secretary to the Bangladesh Government and currently
working as Director (Finance) of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation. He is also a Director of LPGL and
SAOCL Board.

Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque, a member of BCS (Administration) 18th batch, joined in civil
service as Assistant Commissioner on 25 January 1999. In his long career, he served in different capacities
at the field level as well as in different ministries. He obtained B.S.S (Honors) and M.S.S in Economics
from the University of Chittagong. He also obtained an MA in International Trade & Economic
Co-operation from the Graduate School of Pan Pacific International Studies of Kyung Hee University,
South Korea under KOICA Scholarship. Moreover, he attended many workshops, Seminars and training
courses at home and abroad.

Md. Zakir Hossain

Joint Secretary

Energy and Mineral Resources Division
Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
& Director, POCL Board

Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain joined as a Director at Padma Oil Company Ltd. in September 2022. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company.

Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain is a Joint Secretary of the Bangladesh Government and currently working in the Energy
and Mineral Resources. He joined the Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration) Cadre as Assistant
Commissioner and Magistrate in 2003 and worked in various capacities at both at the field and central levels as
well as the foreign mission of Bangladesh. He worked in different positions including Nezarat Deputy Collector
of Kishoregonj, Revenue Deputy Collector and 1st class Magistrate of Chattogram, Special Metropolitan
Magistrate at Chattogram City Corporation, Upazila Nirbahi Officer in Chakaria of Cox’s Bazar and Chandina
of Cumilla, Senior Assistant Secretary in the Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change and
Expatriates” Welfare and Overseas Employment and Deputy Secretary in Energy and Mineral Resources
Division. From 2016 to February 2022, he served as a Counselor (Labour and Welfare) at the Embassy of
Bangladesh in Tokyo, Japan. During serving in the Mission, he was recognized as ‘Ambassador for Peace’ by
the Universal Peace Federation (UPF) in 2019.

He completed SSC and HSC from Barishal Cadet College and obtained B.Sc. (Hons) and M.Sc. from the
University of Dhaka.

He participated in different trainings, study tours, conferences, seminars, workshops, etc. at home and abroad.

@
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Brief Resume of Directors

Md. Tarikul Islam Khan

Joint Secretary, Finance Division
Ministry of Finance
& Director, POCL Board

Mr. Md. Tarikul Islam Khan is a Joint Secretary to the Government of Bangladesh and presently working as Joint
Secretary (Budget wing) at Finance Division, Ministry of Finance. Mr. Khan joined BCS (Administration) cadre in
the year 2003 (21st BCS).

He has been serving Finance Division for about 15 years in different capacities while his service length in the civil
service is almost 21 years. During his tenure in Finance Division, his acquired areas of expertise are MTBF
budgeting, Ministry Budget Framework, Budget and Accounting Classification System, Gender Budgeting e.t.c.
He is well conversant in the area of Constitutional/legal Framework of the Public Financial Management system as
a whole. His area of interests include PFM reform, National Social Security Strategy (NSSS) and Integrated
Budget & Accounting Classification System (iBAS) etc. Mr. Khan also worked with the Asian Development Bank
(ADB) and the World Bank on Secondment position for almost five years in two separate projects/programs of
Finance Division. He is also serving as the “Social Safety Net Focal Person” of Finance Division.

T.I. Khan is a law graduate having L.L.B and L.L.M degree from University of Dhaka. He also had another
Research Masters Degree on “Global Development & International Law” from The Coventry University, United
Kingdom. He has pursued a certificate course (6 months long course) on “Project Management” from National
Academy for Planning & Development (NAPD), Bangladesh.

Apart from his academic belt Mr. Khan has pursued PFM training courses from across the globe especially from
Japan, UK, USA, Australia, South Africa, Singapore and many more. Mr. Khan is a regular Adjunct Faculty in
Bangladesh Institute of Governance and Management (BIGM), an esteemed institute under University of Dhaka
and has been teaching there on Governance & Public Policy.

Besides serving Finance Division, he is also a government nominated Board Member of Bangladesh Industrial
Technical Assistance Centre (BITAK). He was also as a government nominated board member of Bangladesh
Handloom Board before.

Suzadur Rahman
Director, POCL Board

/

o

Mr. Suzadur Rahman is both a renowned business person as well as a reputed political figure in
Bangladesh. He is currently a member of the Publicity and Publication sub-committee of
Bangladesh Awami League. Previously he was also a member of the Forest and Environment
sub-committee of Bangladesh Awami League. He also holds two Master’s Degrees in both
Accounting Information System (AIS) and Health Economics from the University of Dhaka. He is
the founding chairman of G7 Securitas Ltd. — a leading security service provider in Bangladesh.
He is a successful entrepreneur with a proven leadership role in different businesses. He is the
chairman of King Consultants Ltd., proprietor of M/S S.S. Enterprise and chairman of Mindlabz
Ltd. He is a distinguished member of BASIS and the Bangladesh Bridge Federation. In 2019, he
accompanied the Honorable Prime Minister of Bangladesh—Sheikh Hasina during her visit to the
USA for the 74th UN Assembly. In 2011 he traveled to China to perceive the activities of the
Chinese Communist Party (CCP) as a special envoy of the Honorable Prime Minister of
Bangladesh —Sheikh Hasina. He has also visited over 30 countries of the world and enjoys visiting

new places and countries.
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Brief Resume of Directors

Kutubuddin Akhter Rashid

(Representative of United Enterprise & Co. Ltd.)
Shareholder Director, POCL Board

Mr. Kutubuddin Akhter Rashid began his professional career at United Group in 2018 as a Management
Associate in UECL — Power Division soon after completing his bachelor’s degree, in Public Relations &
Marketing, earning a position in the Dean’s List from Taylor’s University, Malaysia. He was posted on
site at Mymensingh to be involved as a core project team member for United Jamalpur Power Ltd. and
United Mymensingh Power Ltd. Upon successful completion of the projects in Mymensingh, he was
transferred to Chattogram to supervise the implementation of United Anwara Power Ltd., which led to
commissioning in June 2019.

As a young entrepreneur, Mr. Kutubuddin Akhter Rashid’s involvement in business has imbued well
with the core values of the Group. His keen sense of professionalism and ability to lead projects in strict
timeframes led to his appointment as the Associate Director of United Enterprises & Co. Ltd. He took
charge of the United Payra Power Ltd. project, and amid the Covid pandemic outbreak, his careful
planning, and prudent decisions during project execution, led to on time commissioning of the project.
Mr. Kutubuddin Akhter Rashid is currently in charge of the Power Division of United Group with an
objective to optimize operational efficiency in ongoing projects. He also leads the planning and design
phase of new/upcoming projects that the Group is interested to invest in. Additionally, he is the
Managing Director of Leviathan Global (BD) Ltd. and United Healthcare Services Ltd.

Mr. Kutubuddin Akhter Rashid serves as a Director on the board of United Payra Power Ltd, United
Ashuganj Energy Ltd and United Hospital Ltd.

Md. Masudur Rahman

Managing Director, POCL
& Director, POCL Board

Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman is the Managing Director of Padma Oil Company Limited (POCL), a
subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). He joined POCL as Managing Director for
the first time on 2nd April, 2017 and served upto 22.05.2022. He Joined Meghna Petroleum
Limited as Managing Director on 23.05.2022 after five years with Padma Oil Company Limited
and again joined Padma Oil Company Limited on 23 January 2023. Prior to his joining in POCL,
he also served as Managing Director of Jamuna Oil Company Limited (JOCL) from 23.02.2015 to
01.04.2017. Mr. Rahman joined Meghna Petroleum Limited, another subsidiary of BPC, as an
Operations Engineer on 4th March, 1990. He has over 33 years of professional experience in the
country's downstream petroleum industry.

Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman completed his BSc in Engineering (Mech.) from Bangladesh University of
Engineering & Technology (BUET) and EMBA in Finance from the University of Science and
Technology, Chattogram (USTC). He attended various seminars and training courses at home and abroad.
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Corporate Management

Md. Masudur Rahman
Managing Director

C.M Ziaul Hassan Dr. Md. Alamgir Chowdhury
General Manager Chief Medical Officer
(HR & Admin)

Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA Sheikh Al Mamun
General Manager (Accounts and Finance) Deputy General Manager (Aviation)
& CFO
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Corporate Management

Mohammad Roman Chowdhury Asif Malek
Deputy General Manager (Sales) Deputy General Manager (Operations)

A.K.M Fazle Elahee Mir Mohammad Fakhar Uddin
Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager
(Audit) (HR & Admin)

Ali Absar
Company Secretary
& DGM (Finance)
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Corporate Information

Company Secretary
Ali Absar

Legal Advisors
H & H Company
Lex Counsel
Tanjib Alam & Associates

Alliance Laws
Barrister HM Siddique Shanijid

Advocate Mohsanuddin Chowdhury
Advocate S. C. Lala

Tax Consultant

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Auditors
M.M Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Insurers
Sadharan Bima Corporation

Delta Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bankers
Janata Bank PLC
Agrani Bank PLC

Sonali Bank PLC
Pubali Bank PLC

Eastern Bank PLC

Trust Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Citibank N A

One Bank PLC
United Commercial Bank PLC

BRAC Bank PLC

Bank Asia Limited

AB Bank PLC

Mercantile Bank PLC

Prime Bank PLC

National Credit & Commerce Bank PLC
NRB Bank Limited

Islami Bank Bangladesh PLC
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Performance at a Glance for 2022-2023

2022-2023 2021-2022

26.89 25.45
Fuel Oil Sales Lakh Metric  Lakh Metric
Tons Tons
Tk. Tk.
Crore Crore
Tk. Tk.
Net Profit before Tax 436.81 298.53
Crore Crore
Tk. Tk.
Net Profit after Tax 349.53 240.38
Crore Crore
Tk. Tk.
Earnings per Share
35.58 24.47
Tk. Tk.
NAYV per share
203.46 180.38
Tk. Tk.
NOCF per share
(51.99) 98.15
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Chairman's Statement

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Honorable Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Padma Oil
Company Limited and my behalf, | welcome all of you to the
54th Annual General Meeting. The Company has made
record profits in its history in the reported year with the
sincere efforts and diligence of its manpower at all levels. At
the same time, the Company has been able to provide a
high standard of services, adhere to business ethics and
regulations compliance, practice to the norm of best
practices and continuously improve the shareholders’ value.
| extend my sincere thanks to you all for your continued
support and unwavering confidence in us. Through this
program, | would like to present to you the success and
business results of the Company in the fiscal year 2022-23.

Hon’ble Shareholders, in this auspicious moment, |
remember with deep respect the greatest Bangali of all
times and the great architect of independence and Father of
the Nation Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman and his
family members who were brutally killed on 15 August
1975. Along with this, | remember with respect four National
Leaders, thirty lac martyrs and two lac mothers and sisters
persecuted who sacrificed their lives to achieve the
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Independence of Bangladesh. Just six days before his
death on 9 August 1975, Father of the Nation Bangabandhu
Sheikh Mujibur Rahman took a landmark step towards
ensuring energy security in Bangladesh. In the national
interest, this day his government bought the country’s five
largest gas fields: Titas, Bakhrabad, Rashidpur, Kailashtila
and Habiganj from the multinational oil company Shell
International for Just Tk. 17.86 crore which current market
value is around Tk. 12.50 lakh crore. This step of the Father
of the Nation was the final implementation of the
constitutional, legal and policy decision taken by him in the
national interest as part of the liberation struggle of the
Bengali nation. Therefore, every year 9th August is
celebrated as National Energy Security Day.

The energy and power sector is one of the driving forces
behind the overall development of a country. According to
the internationally recognized policy, in an economy like
Bangladesh, 1% GDP growth requires a 1.8%-2%
increase in fuel consumption. The Father of the Nation
Bangabandhu established permanent sovereignty over
natural resources in Article 143 Constitution to ensure the
energy security of the state. Bangabandhu formed the
Bangladesh Minerals, Oil and Gas Corporation (BMOGC)
on 26 March 1972 by Presidential Order No. 27 to explore
and develop the country’s Oil, Gas and Mineral resources.
In 1974, it was abbreviated as ‘Petrobangla’. He enacted
the Petroleum Act and Petroleum policy in 1974 to
modernize the energy sector. As a result of the wise
leadership of Father of the Nation Sheikh Mujibur
Rahman, the Govt. of Bangladesh took over (A) Pakistan
National Oil Limited, Dawood Petroleum Limited, Burmah
Eastern Limited and Eastern Lubricants Blenders Limited
through Bangladesh Abandoned Property (Control,
Management and Disposal) order, 1972 (P.O. No. 16 of
1972) (B) Eastern Refinery Limited through Bangladesh
Industrial Enterprise (Nationalization) order, 1972 (P.O.
No. 27 of 1972) and (C) ESSO Eastern Inc. of USA
through the ESSO Undertaking Acquisition Ordinance,
1975 for the storage, supply, distribution and sales of fuel
oil under state supervision. As a result of that landmark
decision, Padma Oil Company Limited, Meghna
Petroleum Limited, Jamuna Oil Company Limited, Eastern
Refinery Limited and Eastern Lubricants Blenders Limited
including Other companies became state-owned
companies by establishing the Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation (BPC) in 1976. All these companies are
playing a major role in stocking, supplying and distributing
fuel in the country today. In a word, Father of the Nation
Bangabandhu provided the necessary energy security for
the economic development and prosperity of Bangladesh.

Padma Oil Company Limited is an ancient oil marketing
company. lts ancestral enterprise “Rangoon Oil Company”
began the Petroleum business in the nineteenth century

®
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and was registered as a Joint Stock Company in Scotland
in 1871. This Company was reformed as Burmah Oil
Company in 1885. Burmah Oil Company established their
‘Moheskhal Qil Installation’ at Goshaildanga, Chattogram
in the year 1903 and the large-scale Qil Installation at
Guptakhal in Patenga in 1956. In the year 1965, Burmah
Eastern Limited was registered as a Public Limited
Company under the Companies Act, 1913 and became a
subsidiary company of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation
in 1977. In the year 1985, Burmah Eastern Limited
transferred its entire share in favour of Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation (BPC) and on 3 September 1988,
Burmah Eastern Limited was renamed Padma Oil
Company Limited. Under the dynamic leadership of
Honorable Prime Minister Sheikh Hasina and her
instructions, Companies of BPC have ensured the supply
of safe fuel in this country. The Company has come a long
way today due to the tireless efforts of the esteemed
shareholders and the workers and employees of the
Company since its inception. So, | am grateful to all of them.

Business Environment in FY 2022-23:

Bangladesh economy has achieved unprecedented
success over a long decade. The country achieved a GDP
growth rate of 7.88% in the fiscal year 2018-19, the year
before the COVID-19 pandemic which was appreciated all
over the world. Bangladesh government successfully
managed COVID-19 pandemic and returned to high growth
trajectory. Bangladesh economy grew by 6.94% in FY
2020-21 and 7.10% in FY 2021-22. Bangladesh economy
was recovering strongly from the COVID-19 pandemic. But
due to the changing global situation fuel and commodity
prices increased in the international market. As a result,
inflation in the country increased in the reporting year
compared to the previous year. According to the
provisional estimates of BBS, the GDP growth rate in FY
2022-23 stood at 6.03 percent. In the reported year, the
total sales of petroleum products in the country through the
subsidiary companies of Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation amounted to 73.46 lakh metric tons, which was
69.15 lakh metric tons in the last fiscal year.

Business Performance in FY 2022-23:

The Company achieved significant success during the
year under review. The review shows that the volume of
the Company’s petroleum products sales increased by
1.44 lakh metric tons or 5.66% in FY 2022-23 as
compared to the previous fiscal year. The Company’s
sales volume of petroleum products amounted to 26.89
metric tons, which was 25.45 metric tons in FY 2021-22.
In the reported fiscal year, the Company had a market
share of 36.60% in the country’s fuel oil marketing and
was ranked 1st among the oil marketing companies. On
the other hand, sales of agrochemical products of the
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company were 2,177 metric tons in the reported year
which was 2144 metric tons in the last year. The sales of
agrochemical products increased by 1.54% in the
reported year as compared to the previous fiscal year.
The profit before tax of the Company in this year
increased by 46.32% to Taka 436.81 crore from Taka
298.53 crore of the previous year. Earnings per Share
(EPS) stood at Taka 35.58 in the reported year, as
against Taka 24.47 in the last year.

Progress of development works in FY 2022-23:
For the expansion of business various projects

undertaken by the company are going on. A 23 storied
head office building with two basements and one
semi-basement is under construction on its own 0.42
acres of land in Agrabad commercial area of Chattogram.
Two basements and semi-basement work have already
been completed. The work of design modification has
already been finalized. As per the design modification, the
process of appointing the contractor will be taken up
through a fresh tender for carrying out the construction
work. Construction of a 12-storied modern residential cum
commercial building with two additional basements on the
Company’s 1.88-acre owned land at Paribag in Dhaka is
ongoing. The mat foundation work of the building has
been completed and other works are in progress. In
addition, with the aim of bringing the operational activities
of three marketing oil companies’ main installations in
Chattogram including Padma Oil Company Limited under
the scope of automation, an international consultation firm
has already performed the feasibility of the project and
prepared Front End Engineering and Design (FEED).
Based on submitted feed documents, the prepared
Develpoment Project Proposal (DPP) of the project has
been sent to the ministry for approval for the purpose of
appointing an EPC contractor. A consultant firm has
already been appointed for the automation of operational
activities in various depots established in different places
of the country. The RDPP for the work of the project for
the installation of Jet A-1 underground pipeline through
Jahurul Haque Base, Bangladesh Air Force, Chattogram
and Shah Amanat Airport, Chattogram to supply Jet A-1
fuel to the Company’s Jet A-1 depot adjoining Shah
Amanat Airport through the pipeline from the Company’s
Main Installation in Patenga has been approved and
Notification of Award(NOA) has been issued in favour of
the contractor selected through international tender. To
expand the business of the Company, construction work
of a permanent riverine depot in place of the barge depot
at Bhairab Bazar has been started and construction work
of the foundation of 6 tanks has already been completed.
A tender will be floated very soon to appoint the tank
fabrication contractor.
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Besides, development projects like the expansion of
depots, increasing the capacity of fuel oil and physical
infrastructural expansion programs have been undertaken
in order to ensure an uninterrupted supply of petroleum
products throughout the country and provide more
services to the consumer level.

Dividend:

We are working hard to increase the long-term
shareholders' value by our diligence and continuous efforts
due to our commitment to shareholders. This year, the Board
of Directors has recommended to pay cash dividend to the
honorable shareholders at the rate of 135 % per share.

Our Motto:

You know that the fuel sector is the most important sector
of the economy. Microeconomic indicators are being
greatly influenced by the supply and change in the price of
petroleum products. Oil marketing companies give more
priority towards the services of the people of the country.
Padma Oil Company Limited is a marketing company of
fuel oil and agrochemical products. The Company plays
an important role in the overall economy of the country
through the uninterrupted supply of petroleum products all
over the country. Moreover, the Company has been
contributing to the agro-based economy through the
production and marketing of agrochemical products. The
agricultural sector is the most important sector in
Bangladesh economy. It employed a large portion of
Bangladesh’s total labor force and according to the
provisional estimate of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics
(BBS), it accounted for about 11.20 percent of GDP in FY
2022-23.

The main goal of the Company is to ensure the supply of
fuel oil to the doorsteps of the people on time at the
government’s fixed price through proper management of
the Company and to operate marketing activities in an
organized way. Besides, the Company is also trying to
strengthen the supply of environmentally friendly and
quality agrochemical products to increase the production
of agricultural products and provide services to the
consumers through organized marketing activities.

Targets of the Company for the FY 2023-24:

The aim of the Company for the FY 2023-24 will be to
ensure the energy security of the country through an
uninterrupted supply of quality petroleum products at
government-regulated price. In addition, the Company’s
aim is to strengthen the supply of environmentally friendly
and quality agrochemical products across the country to
increase the country’s agricultural production. We want to
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take forward the projects adopted by the Company to
expand the business. Above all, our goal for the next year
is to maximize the shareholders’ value by earning
significant growth on profitability of the Company.

Thanks & Gratitude:

Finally, | would like to convey my sincere thanks and
profound gratitude to Energy & Mineral Resources
Division and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation for their
cordial cooperation and proper directions. | would also like
to thank each member of the Board of Directors for their
collective efforts and the management team, all the
officials and staff of the Company for their sincere efforts
and support. Without their cooperations the Company
could not achieve its desired goal. | express my gratitude
to Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms,
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Board of Directors' Report

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim,
Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

The Board of Directors of the Padma Oil Company
Limited takes immense pleasure in presenting the 54th
Annual Report of the Company to our valued
shareholders. It is an honor for the Board of Directors to
present the Directors' Report together with the audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2023 and the Auditors' Report thereon to our
valued shareholders for consideration and approval. The
Directors' Report contains a review of the economic
situation of Bangladesh, petroleum and agrochemical
industries, a presentation of the Company’s financial,
operating, and corporate governance activities for the
fiscal year 2022-23, and highlights the total position and
opportunity of the Company.

Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements of POCL give a comprehensive
outlook of the state of affairs of the Company and the
results of its operation, cash flow, and changes in equity.
The presented financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the International Accounting Standards
(IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and
Exchange Rules 2020, and other applicable laws and
regulations in Bangladesh as per requirements under the
Financial Reporting Act 2015. It gives a correct and fair
view of the total business activities of the Company to our
shareholders. The financial statements are prepared by
the management, audited by external auditors appointed
in the Annual General Meeting, and approved by the
Board of Directors.

Economic Situation:

Bangladesh’s economy achieved unprecedented
success for a decade before the start of the COVID-19
pandemic. The country’s economic growth in the
pre-COVID-19 fiscal year 2018-19 was 7.88 percent.
This trend of high growth was disrupted by the
COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, the economic growth
of the country in the fiscal year 2019-20 slowed to
3.45% which increased to 6.94% in FY 2020-21 and
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7.10% in FY 2021-22. According to the provisional
estimates of BBS, the GDP growth rate in FY 2022-23
stood at 6.03 percent. Remittance inflows increased by
2.76% to US$ 21.61 billion in the reported year from
US$ 21.03 billion in the previous year. The average
inflation rate in FY 2022-23 stood at 9.02 percent
which was 6.15 percent in FY 2021-22.

Bangladesh’s economy has recovered from the
economic damage caused by the impact of COVID-19
and the ongoing Russia-Ukraine crisis, although the
recent slowdown in the global economy is also
reflected in Bangladesh’'s economy. Due to the
changing global situation, some financial sectors of our
country’s economy are adversely affected in the fiscal
year 2022-23. The increase in the price of daily
necessities and fuel oil in the international market has
created inflationary pressure in the economy which
has an impact on the economy of Bangladesh.

Industry Review:
(a) Fuel Sector:

The organized management and uninterrupted supply
of fuel oil, play a major role in the economic
development of the country. Fuel oil is the driving force
of the economy which is regarded as the most
prioritized sector. It has ample influence directly or
indirectly in all economic sectors.

One of the indicators of development is the increase in
energy demand. In 1972, the overall demand for fuel
oil in the country was 8.48 lakh metric tons, which has
gradually increased to 73.46 lakh metric tons in FY
2022-23 under Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation. In
the reported year, total sales of fuel oil in the country
increased by 6.23% to 73.46 lakh metric tons from
69.15 lakh metric tons in the previous year. To meet
the demand for fuel oil in the country 53.17 lakh metric
tons of refined fuel oil and 15.51 lakh metric tons of
crude oil were imported from abroad in FY 2022-23. It
is to be noted here that crude oil is being refined at
Eastern Refinery Limited, the only one in the country.
Apart from this, during the financial year under review,
the amount of petroleum products received from
various government gas fields and private plants from
local sources was a total of 5.77 lakh metric tons. Out
of which, 1.68 lakh metric tons was from government
gas fields and 4.09 lakh metric tons from private
fractionation plants.

@
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Product-wise sale of petroleum products in the

2033-0 WARE@ M QI (o Aeredial e country:
IGFETE In the fiscal year 2022-23, the sales of different grades
of petroleum products in the country are as follows:
o6 Rermx uantit Percentage of
AT AT AR (@D | opire (%) Product %n MT) Total Saics

(S5 @-3 8,95,69¢ .83 Jet A-1 471,535 6.42
SF ©,59,¢¢q €O Octane 3,93.557 5.36
CATGIET 8,28,a@Y .55 Petrol 4,54,556 6.19
I Qq,8%-4 .0¢ Kerosene 77,487 1.05
fote= 85,9¢,8b9 LA, Sb Diesel 49.35,483 67.18
T ST b,bo,90% 35,55 Furnace Oil 8.80,702 11.99
@erfee oo 0.00 LDO 310 0.00
e ®,999 0.59 JBO 9,763 0.13
S WG 59,590 0.2 Lube Oil 16,173 0.22
@ARTHGT L,88¢ 0.0% SBPS 6,445 0.09
Ao @,05b 0.094 MTT 5,098 0.07
«sfatfer 3¢,23¢ 0.2 LPG 15,215 0.21
[phe LR, 008 o.b¢ Bitumen 62,304 0.85
farer ) 0.00 Grease 92 0.00
I oreEET 39,99¢ 0.38 Marine Oil 17,375 0.24
5 Q9,8Y,05¢ Y00.00 Total 73,46,095 100.00

T QR CSTeTa Areeqt JIR: Sectoral consumption of fuel in the country:

AT QT (o wieRieR 8 (5F)T @w otga
72T AR, P, g ¢ fgre Ate e =7 |
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82,30,55) @R  8,eH,5Y LY.L
), 0.84 50,08 3.9
5,890,385 5.5¢ ,60,€9 Dy
99,8Y,05¢ 500,00 Yd,3¢,000 300,00

15.5

Agriculture

17.74

5-63 .
-

Industry

Power

Transport

Most of the petroleum products in Bangladesh are

used

in four major

sectors namely

transport,

agriculture, industry and power. The details of the
petroleum products used in FY 2021-22 and 2022-23

are as follows:

Sector
Agriculture
Industry
Power
Transport
Domestic
Others
Total

0.97

—

Housework

(Qty in MT)
202223 (%) 202122 (%)
11,38,530 1550 11,50,877 16.64
413550 563 379665 549
13,03527 17.74 883231 1277
42,76,111 5821 42,50976 61.61
71,228 097 90,604  1.31
143,149 195 150,657 2.18
73,46,095 100.00 69,15,010 100.00

Sector-wise Petroleum Oil Sale: 2022-2023 (%)

58.21
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Division-wise fuel consumption in the country:

In the FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23, division-wise sales
of petroleum products in the country are as follows:

(Qty in MT)
o WRW@EF) (%) W@ (%) Division 202223 (%) 202122 (%)
B8 2,89,000 W8 I8,3¢,e R0.43 Chattogram 16,47,131 2242 1425578  20.62
D R,85,808 OB R,38,55%  0._¢ Sylhet 241406 3.9 2,24,992 3.25
Isal W00 O L0 B BYY  Ob.58 Dhaka 2837,853  38.63 2692966  38.94
TEREPIE 5,9¢,50% .0 5,90,€90  R.89 Mymensingh 175132 238 170570 247
AT 500,200 3208 BHBIL B0 g 833200 11.34 884986  12.80
RS 8,80,009  @&®> 8,880y L8O g 440,017 599 444328 643
Ll 900,00 9R.89  4,89,08C 0.4V, 916012 1247 700045  11.56
SIER R,€¢,088 0.8y R, REBE OB gy 055344 348 272545  3.93
e 90,80,05€ 500.00 Uy, 5C,050 500,00 Total 73,46,095 100.00  69,15,010  100.00
Division-wise Petroleum Oil Sale: 2022-2023 (%)
38.63
22.42
11.34 12.47
. 5.99
i \ 3.29 2.38 3.48 -
@Chattogram @Dhaka wRajshahi mKhulna &Sylhet wMymenshing wBarishal &Rangpur
- @Wﬂﬁﬂwﬁm s WW&W= Sale and Market Share of Fuel Oil Marketing Companies:
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@i 7 5 e (% (,59)  AORK 9emig (%) 99EM
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The details of the sale and market share of three major
marketing companies under Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation are as follows for the fiscal year 2022-23:

Company’s Total sale Market
Name (MT in lakh) Share (%) Position
Padma Oil Company Ltd.  26.89 36.60 1st
Meghna Petroleum Ltd.  26.20 35.67 2nd
Jamuna Oil Company Ltd.  19.48 26.52 3rd




Market Share (%) 2022-23
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Transport pool of fuel oil marketing companies:

At present, there are 90 costal tankers, 03 shallow
draft tankers, 71 bay crossing shallow draft tankers
and 16 mini oil tankers in three fuel oil marketing
companies’ transport pool of petroleum products. Of
them, 37 costal tankers, 25 bay crossing shallow draft
tankers and 07 mini oil tankers are in the POCL'’s
transport pool of petroleum products. It is mentionable
here that about 73.58% of the fuel oil is transported
through the river, 7.53% is transported by railway and
the rest of 18.89% of fuel oil is transported on the road.

Marketing network of fuel oil marketing companies:

At present, there are 2,303 filling stations, 2,715
agents/distributors, 680 packed point dealers, 2,696
LPG dealers and 122 marine dealers in the marketing
network of 3 (Three) fuel oil marketing companies in
the country. Besides, Standard Asiatic Oil Company
Limited has 367 LPG dealers. POCL has 717 filling
stations, 859 agents/distributors, 226 packed point
dealers, 675 LPG dealers and 48 marine dealers in its
marketing network.

(b) Agrochemicals Sector of the Country:

There is no alternative to increasing agricultural
production in this country of agro-based economy. It is
essential to use modern agricultural inputs such as
high-breed seeds and fertilizer as well as pesticides to
increase production. To meet the food demand of the
country's growing population, there has been created a
market of pesticides along with a modernization of
agriculture. More than 750 domestic and multi-national
companies including Padma Oil Company Limited have
been marketing various types of pesticide products in
this country which are contributing significantly to the

production and preservation of crops.
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At present, the Company has marketed 41
agrochemical products. Of these, 18 products are
registered in the name of the Company and the
remaining products are from various multinational
companies such as BASF Bangladesh Limited,
Haychem Bangladesh Limited and Riceco Bangladesh
Limited. Agrochemical pesticides play a vital role in
Bangladesh's agriculture. Several research studies
have shown that the use of pesticide products
contributes significantly to increasing the productivity
and production of agricultural products.

POCL Activities:

The Company's principal activities are procurement,
storage and marketing of petroleum products,
lubricating & greases, bitumen and LPG. In addition,
the Company has been engaged in the marketing of
agrochemical products. Thus, the Company’s business
has two reportable segments (a) Petroleum and (b)
Agrochemicals.

Company’s Business performance: 2022-23
(a) Petroleum Products:

The Company’s total sales volume of petroleum
products was 26.89 lakh metric tons as against 25.45
lakh metric tons in the last year. The Company’s fuel
oil sales increased by 5.66% in FY 2022-23 over the
last year. In the corresponding year, among the
petroleum products, sales of Aviation fuel increased by
10.39%, MS 1.40%, Kerosene 6.57%, Diesel 0.74%,
Furnace oil 46.85%, SBP 550.32%, MTT 3.70% and
Bitumen 5.50%. On the other hand, in the reporting
year Octane decreased by 0.61%, LDO 48.06%, Jute
batching oil 25.67%, Marine fuel 59.80% and LPG
5.96%.

(b) Agrochemical Products:

During the year under review, the Company’s
agrochemical sales stood at 2,177 metric tons as
against 2,144 metric tons in the last year. The sales of
the Company’s agrochemical products increased by 33
metric tons or 1.54% in the year under review
compared to the previous fiscal year.

Company’s Distribution Network:

Padma Oil Company Limited has a strong marketing
network across the country. The Company has 2,525
distributors at different levels in various key locations of
the country in the marketing network of petroleum
products as on 30.06.2023 as follows:

®
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On the other hand, the Company employs 325
licensed agrochemical distributors across the country
and supplies products to farmers through about 10,000
licensed vendors.

Company’s Depot Network:

Currently, there are 21 depots of the Company across
the country including Main Installation to operate the
Company’s operational activities. Of these, there are a
Main Installation, 9(nine) Riverine depots, 6(six)
Rail-head depots, 4(four) Aviation depots and another
depot for receiving fuel oil directly through the pipeline
from Brahmanbaria Gas Field. The Company solely
supplies aviation fuel Jet-A-1 to domestic and
overseas aircraft at three international airports (Hazrat
Shahjalal International Airport, Dhaka, Hazrat Shah
Amanat International Airport, Chattogram and Osmani
International Airport, Sylhet). Recently the Company
has taken over the ownership and responsibility of
management of Cox’s Bazar aviation depot and the
refueling operations of aircraft started on 03/09/2023 at
Cox’s Bazar Airport. Besides, the Company operates
its marketing activities of agrochemical products
through 13 depots across the country.

Company’s Storage Capacity:

According to the National Energy Policy-2004, the
strategic reserves of fuel oil of the country should be
maintained for 60 days. To this end, BPC and its
subsidiary companies have undertaken various
reserve growth activities. It may be mentioned that
BPC’s subsidiaries had a combined fuel oil storage
capacity of about 9.00 lakh metric tons in the fiscal
year 2009-10 which has been gradually increased. In
the last decade, this capacity has increased by about
4.24 lakh metric tons and it stood at 13.24 lakh metric
tons in FY 2022-23.
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The storage capacities of Diesel, Octane, Petrol, Jet
A-1 and Furnace oil across the country are 6,05,862
metric tons, 50,875 metric tons, 34,920 metric tons,
62,735 metric tons and 1,44,834 metric tons
respectively. Considering the average sales volume, it
is possible to keep stock of products i.e. Diesel,
Octane, Petrol, Jet A-1 and Furnace oil for 43 days, 35
days, 22 days, 62 days and 59 days respectively.

To ensure fuel security in the country, the projects of
(1) ‘Installation of Single Point Mooring (SPM) with
double pipeline’ (2) ‘India-Bangladesh Friendship
Pipeline ((IBFPL) (3) ‘Jet A-1 pipeline from Pitolgan;j
(near Kanchan Bridge) to Kurmitola Aviation Depot
(KAD) including pumping facilities’, and (4) ‘Fuel oil
transport in pipeline from Chattogram to Dhaka’ are
under implementation. After the implementation of
these projects, the total storage capacity of fuel oil will
be increased by about 2.98 lakh metric tons.

Of the total storage capacity of petroleum products of
the subsidiary companies under Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation in the country, there are 5.00
lakh metric tons storage capacity of Eastern Refinery
Limited, 3.02 lakh metric tons storage capacity of
Padma Oil Company Limited, 2.35 lakh metric tons
storage capacity of Meghna Petroleum Limited and
2.22 lakh metric tons storage capacity of Jamuna Oil
Company Limited. The storage capacity of fuel oil at
the Main Installation and various depots of the
Company as of 30 June 2023 is as follows:

Depot Name

Storage Capacity ( Qty in MT)

ST == CEFFTST (T
I IS, 58T >,@8,0ub
CAIANE= Toesit, FiaEe=res ws.29d
=TSR BT, =11 2e.>am
T NG SHAG =, T oS, brod
=r==ife e, arssies 22,509
sha==E [, siva= 8, 00v
wTeere fEooit, Fr=ra=fear 2,aa>
FrweiteaT oo 3,554
coaISTetS feeeT L8>
1= o= 2,500
Jr=roreT o=t PISSCY:N
NFST= ST @,8L>
TR e 8L
BT = RS
Tree==r TS TARR @S SATF (CF FFIAZ T4 =T |
fEr=reT et fSe=ir, Ifs=reT Lab
WIS et 2,590
ST afsar=i= S v,84%
SHANRT WeStIFo<s Fa=a-ax fecair S, 020
=N ® NSt Axiaw= S L
THETetw _RisTwg [Se=ir »o
FHCTG TO,05,508

Main Installation, Chattogram 1,554,368
Godenail Depot, Narayangonj 31,271
Daulatpur Depot, Khulna 25,979
Mongla Oil Installation, Mongla 31,801
Baghabari Depot, Sirajgonj 22,187
Chandpur Depot, Chandpur 4,336
Ashuganj Depot, Brahmanbaria 2,771
Brahmanbaria Depot 2,917
Bhairab Bazar Depot 641
Sylhet Depot 2,963
Srimangal Depot 1,139
Parbatipur Depot 5,461
Rangpur Depot 946
Natore Depot 999

Rajshahi Depot

Barishal Barge Depot, Barishal 678
Jhalakati Depot 2,936
Kurmitola Aviation Depot 8,479
Osmani International Airport Depot 1,026
Shah Amanat International Airport Depot 996
Cox’s Bazar Airport Depot Q0
Total m

@

Supply directly from Railway Wagon
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Financial Result (2022-23):

The Directors take immense pleasure in reporting the
following financial results of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2023:

(CRIG Brevr) Taka in crore
ﬁl‘f 202230 2023-22 (XA (%) Particulars 2022-2023 2021-22 (decreaselincrease (%)
TGRS #itely NG =T L8 398.9% 33,09 Gross profit on petroleum products 261.64  234.39 11.63
AGIfeT ey 45 <y 89.9% VYO8 5.9 Net profit on petroleum products 24379  218.19 11.73
ARIBIETT 496 (388.¢8) (R85.4%) 3.09 Operating expenses (244.54) (241.72) 117
NG <t ARGE [ (0.9V) (R9.¢9) »v.q9 Operating Profit on petroleum (0.76)  (23.53) 96.77
S5 2w o 9R8.59 95.00 @r.58 Other operating income 124.93 79.00 58.14
SRR G AT o (2.59) (b8) (R¢.00) Operating loss on Agrochemicals trading (2.13) (2.84) (25.00)
B ARG A 332.0¢ (2.8 O3y Total operating profit 12205  52.64 131.86
ARDER o 0o4.4¢ EUMAON .50 Non-operating income 337.75 261.61 29.10
TiEEfAfaT ¢ F97E e 8¢5o  ©38.38 803 Profit before WPPF & Income Tax 459.80  314.24 46.32
PECLIL RSt (2.65)  (3¢.9d) 8Y.98 Contribution to WPPF (22.99)  (15.71) 46.34
W"jﬁ JRRT 80V brd WY.¢O 8L, O Profit before Income tax 436.81 298.53 46.32
SRS (raxy)  (eb.e) €0.0d Provision for Income Tax (87.28)  (58.15) 50.09
NS YT ©85.0\9 80,9 8¢.8Y Net profit after Tax 349.53 240.38 45.41
(15 FufRTRAPTS @ 85,69 800  8G.8Y Total comprehensive Income 34953 24038 4541

wifE AT Financial Review:

Y 2033-30 Gfmm @iifa wifds wereEw 8o A financial review on the Company’s financial results in
G5 AL g 2 FY 2022-23 has described below:

CONGIETAI 2T & A Gross Earnings on Petroleum Products:

2033-29 AR (G #ITely &7 I Qud.u8 &It
B!, A 2033-3% THREE 208.95 @I B wE
$5.99% QM|

CAGITETIST #itely 5 =

2035-33 WREE @fea (AGiferm sy Ry W6
o fod 2db.0n @I BT, T 2022-20 IHRE TR
289,95 (I Bra | Iaa T $5.90% |

SRR T ARG who:

Ay SRR (I SN AR ~Ifbrer
o TRCR 250 @I 57| o wdqed -4t wfoq
e 2ot 2,68 (@G BT | Ay SR O SRR
T g Ate AfpEN o ¢.00% I (CATAR |
SCAHAFE T OGS FAE ACH; TP G
TAIRS AR |

T ARG 343b:

ST TR (WG ARDIEw 496 TRE 288.¢8 (&I
B, T e wR_wF fowt 285,92 IS Bl |

In financial year 2022-23, Gross Earnings on
petroleum products stood at taka 261.84 crore with an
increment of 11.63% compared to taka 234.39 crore in
the previous year.

Net Earnings on Petroleum Products:

The Company’s Net Earnings on petroleum products is
Taka 243.79 crore in FY 2022-23 which was Taka
218.19 crore in the previous fiscal year, registering an
increase rate of 11.73%.

Operating loss on Agrochemicals Trading:

During the year under review, the operating loss in the
agrochemicals business was Taka 2.13 crore as
against Taka 2.84 crore in the last year. During the
year under review, operating loss in this business
decreased by 25% compared to the last year. All
activities are continuing to make the agrochemicals
business profitable.

Total Operating Expenses:

Total operating expenses were Taka 244.54 crore in
the reported year as against Taka 241.72 crore in the last
year.
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Total Operating Profit:

During the year under review, total operating profit was
Taka 122.05 crore as against Taka 52.64 crore in the
last year, showing an increase of 131.86%.

Non-operating Income:

Non-operating income was Taka 337.75 crore in FY
2022-23 which is 29.10% higher than Taka 261.61
crore in the last year.

Net Profit before Income Tax:

Net Profit before Income Tax increased by 46.32% to
Taka 436.81 crore in FY 2022-23 from Taka 298.53
crore in the previous fiscal year.

Profit Before Income Tax (Taka in Core)

2018-2019
2019-2020
2020-2021
2021-2022

2022-2023

e WG A

2033-20 TRRF FCAEH 716 JATT TS SLIRET 280,00
6 BT (AF 8¢.85% I (A MG 085.¢0 TG
BIl |

fore:
(5) TRBFRT oI Sies:

9Dy wdRE B oW et &\ .90%, T TS
SR 2o 2,58 % |

381.03

363.81

292.63
298.53

436.81

Net Profit after Tax:

Net Profit after tax increased to Taka 349.53 crore in
FY 2022-23 from Taka 240.38 crore of the preceding
year registering an increase of 45.41 percent.

Returns:
(i) Returns On Assets:

Return on Assets stood at 2.30% in FY 2022-23 which
was 2.14% in the last year.

Return on Assets (%)

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

1.72
_l2.94

J2.43

J2.30
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ii) Returns On Equity:

Return on Equity was 17.49% during the year that was
13.57% in the last year.

Return on Equity (%)

b\

W 2022-23
m 2021-22
H 2020-21
W 2019-20
H2018-19

L a?¥

Wol*l T, Jox¢ I @i o afs siw TR
0C. &b BIFT, AT TS o G 033 RBITH feT 8.8 Bl |

Earnings per Share (EPS):

EPS stood at Taka 35.58 as on 30 June 2023, which
was Taka 24.47 in the last year.

Earnings Per Share (Taka)

35.58

24 . 47 23,27

i

2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021

wo GF 030 . Sifftd smiie sidameEw @i e
afs 76 sifeq T e 200.80 5T | T W@
Sro.ob BIFE QAR Wty wdkwid ¢RiF afs &5
TG T dR.bro *TeIN Jia (ATACE |

29 o7

2018-2019 ‘

Net Assets value per share:

Net Assets value per share recorded at Taka 203.46
as on 30 June 2023 compared to Taka 180.38 in the
previous year, showing an increase of 12.80 percent.

27.79

2019-2020

Net Assets Value Per Share (Taka)

203.46

e

2022-2023 2021-2022

168.41

2020-202

LB

157.64
142.85

[

1 2019-2020 2018-2019
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Dividend:

Shareholders’ return is always key priority to the Board
of Directors of the Company. The Board is pleased to
recommend to pay 135% percent cash dividend i.e.
per share Taka 13.50 to the shareholders for the year
2022-23. The recommended dividend if approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, Taka
132.61 crore will be distributed among the
shareholders as detailed below.

= AT (I Bi) Particulars Amount in Crore Taka
ToaeT {5 T 085.¢ Net Profit available for appropriation 349.53

. ~ . Board’s recommendation for appropriation;

9 PP B L 135% Cash Dividend 132.61
2ffe R Yo% [ T TSI SOR.b3 Transfer to Retained Earnings 216.92
E[CEAC T R FEEX

Dividend Per Share-Cash (%)
135
130
125 125 125 l
I 2022-2023 I 2021-2022 I 2020-2021 I 2019-2020 I 2018-2019 I
RN 3re: Shareholders’ Equity:

CRIAETRME Y 9 4R0e IR O TFe AR &
PO (b8l I IR | O @R ofme %
Afqega Sy 9 TEET drEeE T 9w
@i R6ET W AR G I@ WH ST FA0S
207 | ol TF, 030 B e wiffs e swa
CRIRTRITR EPRBA 2R o JRRET 3,99.68 @6
Bl (*TF 230,98 @6 BT w4 Sbo% Iw AW
AT 550 &I Bl | Wiy wdktmm @i
e T T sv.xe @I BRI CRIREEE
ORI Q@ We S (@A o el TR
RS FAA |

The Board of Directors of the Company is continuously
trying to promote and uphold the interests of the
shareholders along with the growth of the Company.
However, the Company has to transfer a large portion
of its profits to retained earnings as the Company’s
future plans will require significant funding.
Shareholders’ Fund increased by Taka 226.74 crore or
12.80% to Taka 1,998.68 crore from Taka 1,771.94
crore as per financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2023. Paid up capital of Padma Oil Company
Limited was Taka 98.23 crore in the reporting year.
The strong position in Shareholders’ fund will enable
the Company to expand its business in future.
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Shareholding Position (%)

50.35
16.44
6.57
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Investors

Significant variance in the quarterly and audited
annual Financial Statements:

There was no significant variance between quarterly
performance and overall annual performance.

Related Party Transactions:

During the year, the Company carried out a number of
transactions with related parties in the normal course
of business in accordance with the provisions of
IAS-24. Details of related parties transactions as on
30.06.2023 have been disclosed under Note No.-37.00
of the financial statements.

Protection of Shareholders:

The minority shareholders’ interest of the Company
has always been protected through the efficient
handling of management. The Company is fully
committed to the fair and equal treatment to all kind of
shareholders. We are always active to create a culture
so that the minority shareholders shall have the rights
to propose items in the agenda of the general meeting.
The minority shareholders have access to any and all
relating which the
management is accountable for and should disclose to
the shareholders. All these activities are taken for

information to matters for

insuring the lawful interest of minority shareholders.

Shareholders’ Value and Market Price Information:

The Padma Oil Company Limited remains fully
committed to delivery of higher shareholders’ value.
The Company encourages to invest in the share of
the Company by offering profits at reasonable rates
to shareholders. The Board of Directors has
recommended to pay cash dividend to the




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

A -Y | ISy NRREE R Gfeedd 1w e oit
5% QLG HIRS M S @@= FANEred <R
Jres W f2d Q05,20 B, e wdwRE e Gfewma
T e 1 fest 238.30 BT 1 wol G, 2039 RBMH
@ e JEdeas 2R wifbrte {,0¢¢.09 @16
BIT, A woc G, 2022 BT e 2,000,500 &G BT |

57 ol @ SAfATIEETTT T

ARG 17 oI Wiy e & fFRfeed o=k
Mo FE ACE | 033-390 TRIEF AW Toig 7ML,
AfsreeNed o Soifgfon eyt @I Siwa TNt
I efStawe T S- Wi 2w |

CRIARIRER #B1:

@R CraEeRIee ATBE Age-2-9 eni*e = |

e ¢ (+iiv) e ~Afaviee 8 Wi [aw o

e ¢ (i) I=Ea @R Afvem ¢ wifds e o
SUPTYR Y(G-0-9 ANfH© Rl |

PiRe ¢ Frape-g7 e

A2 SRS T (@e-9uF =S TR 0(W) SPIE
@A ege TR et (Fr2e) ¢ Jgrem «fives
QT2 G4 N el (Fraws)-97 @well 7egfe-*9’-(s
AYE T R |

FCACHD T

FAED IO YIS AT ARSI, QRO 8
TE-Afeq A WA A= | o @ @A
b e-aa 56 FAEE Tor™ TR wFel, TRl |
IR T CRRCEBETE T 20 T i
e ¢ BT dfe aRRmel @R AffEew  dfs
IAVTRIETS] | FCACIE MIASTCACHR AR 20 TN 5614
A WY A A CEERITE i I w4 B
QICET  OIeTAIGE (LT ey I
PFeRbE e qHABE FHHF IFCAEE ToEeR [aw
SR (ReTRiB/ameei@aiife/ wov-s¢v/ 209/
TITERE/ro S 00 T, 205t T T AT | @
RGO FCAEE TSR SR, GIFN BF GHGG
e @ p8alT 6F e FiGres @6 @ete
R ST e AR Wid ¢ [y e
eferem 37 | e Fifwekiba e iy Jhme
FeT Tlfge FACTD T (FO-R05b-47 TR
Al a0 Qe SHIFISTIT T AN8 AW

honorable shareholders at the rate of 135 % in this
year. Reported Market price of share of POCL in
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited was Taka 209.20
on close of the last trading day on 30.06.2023
which was Taka 214.10 on close of the last trading
day of the last fiscal year. Market capitalization
stood at Taka 2,055.03 crore as on 30 June 2023
which was Taka 2,103.16 crore on 30 June 2022,

Board Meeting & Remuneration of the Directors:

The Board meets regular basis to discharge its
responsibilities. Number of Board Meeting held in FY
2022-23 and the attendance & remuneration of each
director shown in Annexure-1.

Shareholding Pattern:
The shareholding pattern is annexed at Annexure-2.

Key Operating & Financial Data of preceding 5 years:

Key operating & financial data of preceding 5 years is

attached in Annexure-3.

Declaration by the CEO & the CFO:

Declaration by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as
required under condition No.3 (3) of Corporate
Governance Code issued by BSEC has been attached
in Annexure- A.

Corporate Governance:

The core principles of corporate governance are
transparency, accountability and responsibilities with
fair principles. To Padma Oil Company Limited,
corporate governance means increasing the
shareholders’ value by being efficient, transparent and
professional; accountable to the government and the
society, and responsive to the environmental issues.
Maximizing value for shareholders through
performance with the best practices is the responsibility
of corporate management. Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission has issued the conditions
regarding Corporate Governance (Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD /2006-158 /207/ admin/80 dated
03-06-2018) for the companies listed with Stock
Exchanges. The Company has adequately complied
with all the conditions of Corporate Governance Code
of BSEC, listing regulations of DSE and CSE and rules
& regulations of other regulatory bodies. The certificate
provided by the professional accountant and status of
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code-2018 issued by the Bangladesh
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Securities and Exchange Commission are attached in
Annexure ‘B’ and ‘C’ of this Directors’ Report.

Management Discussion & Analysis:

A Management discussion and analysis signed by
Managing Director regarding the Company’s operation
and overall marketing and financial position of the
Company has been attached in Annexure- ‘D’.

Board of Directors:

At present, the Board consists of nine directors. Out of
nine directors, two directors are Independent directors,
another one director is Shareholder director elected
from the remaining shareholders except BPC and rest
of six directors are nominated by BPC/Ministry. It is
mentionable here that out of the Company's paid-up
capital, 50.35 percent belongs to BPC and the
remaining 49.65 percent to institutional and general
investors. The Board of Directors is comprised of
members with high educational and professional
qualifications in the field of business and administrative
management. This has given strength for the effective
discharge of duties and responsibilities by the Board.
The Company's Management operates the Company's
activities within the policies, manuals and limits
approved by the Board. Board Meetings are being held
regularly. As per the direction of the Bangladesh
Securities & Exchange Commission, the Board has
one Audit Committee and one Nomination &
Remuneration Committee (NRC).

Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of Padma Oil Company Limited
comprises three members of the Board nominated by
the Board of Directors and operates according to the
charter of the committee approved by the Board based
on the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange
Commission's Corporate Governance Code. The
objective of the committee is to ensure the Company's

operation through proper and adequate internal
control. The Committee reviews the financial
statements of the Company and makes

recommendations.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

As per Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission’s
Corporate Goverhance Code-2018, the Board has
formed the NRC. The NRC of Padma Oil Company
Limited comprises of three members of the Board
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nominated by the Board of Directors. NRC operates
according to the charter of the Committee approved by
the Board based on the Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission’s Corporate Governance Code.

Chairman of the Board, CEO, CS & HIAC:

The Chairman of the Board, Managing Director cum
CEO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company
Secretary (CS) and Head of Internal Audit &
Compliance (HIAC) of the Company are different
personalities.

Contribution to National Exchequer:

Padma Oil Company Limited has contributed
significantly to the National Exchequer. As per law, the
Company deducts taxes and VAT at sources and other
levies from the various payments and services and
deposits the same to the government exchequer.
Besides, the Company also pays tax on its earnings.
Total payment to the government exchequer during FY

2022-23 is as follows:
Taka in Crore

Particulars POCL Onhehalfof BBC Total
Income Tax 123.29 176.87 300.16
VAT 165.87 3,903.09 4,068.96
Customs Duty 0.72 713.51 714.23
IDSC 0.0046 0.0024  0.0070
Port dues 11.46  ——-mee- 11.46
Total 301.34 4,793.47 5,094.81

Rotation of the Board of Directors:

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and
Articles of Association of the Company one-third of the
members of the Board of Directors retire by rotation at
every Annual General Meeting and retiring directors are
eligible for re-nomination. Director Mr. Md. Tarikul Islam
Khan and Shareholder Director Mr. Kutubuddin Akhter
Rashid will be retired from the Board in the upcoming
Annual General Meeting. Among them, Mr. Md. Tarikul
Islam Khan is eligible for re-appointment and has
already been re-nominated by BPC subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. On the other hand, the election for
the post of shareholder director will be held in the
upcoming Annual General Meeting. It is to be noted
that Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid, the representative
of United Enterprise & Co. Ltd., was elected as the
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shareholder director in the 51st Annual General
Meeting. We are informing with deep sorrow that Mr.
Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid passed away suddenly on
25th November 2023. The Board of Directors of United
Enterprise & Co. Ltd. nominated Mr. Kutubuddin Akhter
Rashid as the shareholder director of the Company in
place of the late Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid which was
approved by the POCL Board.

Independent Director:

There are two Independent Directors on the Board of
Directors of the Company as per the guidelines of
BSEC’s corporate governance code. At present, Mr.
Bashudeb Ganguly and Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim are
two independent directors of the Company.

Appointment of Auditors:

At the 53rd Annual General Meeting M/s. M. M
Rahman & Co., Chartered Accountants and M/s.
Hussain Farhad & Co., Chartered Accountants were
appointed as external joint auditors of the Company for
the FY 2022-23. According to the Companies Act,
1994, both the firms will retire at this Annual General
Meeting and they are eligible for re-appointment for
auditing in FY 2023-24 according to the Companies
Act, 1994. They have already expressed their
willingness for the re-appointment of the Company’s
audit in FY 2023-24.

Appointment of Professional Accountant for Compliance of Corporate Governance:

Under the BSEC’s directive, a proposal for the
appointment of a professional Accountant, to issue the
certificate on compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code for the year ending on 30 June
2024, will be placed for the approval of honorable
shareholders in the ensuing AGM.

Publication and Communication with Shareholders:

The Company gives high priority on timely publication
and submission of the statutory reports i.e. quarterly,
half-yearly and annual financial statements in detail
enabling the regulatory bodies and existing & potential
shareholders to make a fair assessment on the
Company’s overall performance. The Board discusses
and gives directives to the management to ensure the
compliance of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange
Commission’s rules & regulations regularly. All the
price-sensitive information having any possible impact
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on the share prices of the Company and all financial
statements are communicated to the shareholders by
publications in the national dailies, online news portal,
and Company’s website. The Annual General Meeting
also creates an opportunity for communication with
shareholders.

Human Resource Management:

POCL is fully aware of the fact that its significant
growth and success is an outcome of the contributions
and commitment of the Company’s experienced and
skilled human resources. The high caliber, dedicated
and efficient people are a source of competitive
advantage for the business and the Company is fully
focused on the important aspect.

To increase the personal skills of the Company’s
officers and employees and meet their professional
needs, the Company organizes training for them to
develop skilled manpower. POCL provides its officers
and employees with opportunities for continuous
development and learning through various in-house
and external courses. As of 30 June 2023, 210 officers
and 659 employees of the Company are working
across the country. The Company has institutionalized
a program recruitment process under the Recruitment
Policy approved by BPC, through competitive
examination. The objective is to attract the best talent
for the Company’s future leadership.

Health, Safety & Environment:

The Company always considers safety as an
investment. At POCL safety is considered a prime
concern and given due importance regarding the
operating of sensitive fuel oil. We believe that all
accidents/incidents are preventable and our first aim is
excellence in Health and Safety standards in all POCL
businesses. Reportable injuries and incidents analysis
reflect the performance of an organization concerning
workplace safety. During FY 2022-23, there is no
reported injury incident in POCL.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) differs from
place to place and from industry to industry. Padma Oil
Company Limited is one of the largest petroleum
marketing companies as well as one of the
agrochemical marketing companies in the country. As
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a public limited company, its main goal is to serve the
people. Therefore, the Company is serving the people
by carrying out an uninterrupted supply of petroleum
products at government-regulated prices round the
clock in all areas of the country. Nevertheless, POCL
is also playing an important role in the agro-based
economy of the country through its marketing of
agrochemical products.

In addition to providing professional services, POCL is
committed to the society for the socio-economic
development of the country. The Company established a
school at its main installation, Guptakhal in the Patenga
area named, ‘Padma Oil Child Coaching School’ in the
year 1992. As such, the boys and girls of that area are
getting an opportunity to study in the school at a low
cost. The school was up to the class V. To improve the
quality of education and upgradation, the school was
renamed as ‘Padma oil Model School’ on 01 November
2014 and the school was upgraded to Class VIl on 01
January 2015. At present, the number of students of the
school is 300 plus. Besides, according to the policy of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company
donated a total Taka 11.10 lakh to various schools,
religious institutions, and welfare organizations/
foundations during FY 2022-23.

On Going Program:

The Board of Directors takes pleasure in informing
valued shareholders that various development
programs have been undertaken for business
expansion and smooth supply of fuel to the public by
establishing new depots, storage tanks and other
physical infrastructures.

These are namely:

1) A 23-story head office building with two basements
and one semi-basement is under construction on its
own 0.42 acres of land in the Agrabad commercial
area of Chattogram. Two basements and
semi-basement work have already been completed.
The work of design modification has already been
finalized. As per the design modification, the process
of appointing the contractor will be taken up through a
fresh tender for carrying out the construction work.

2) Construction of a 12-storied modern residential cum
commercial building with two additional basements on
the Company’s 1.88-acre owned land at Paribag in
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Dhaka is ongoing. The mat foundation work of the
building has been completed and other works are in
progress.

3) The RDPP, for the work of the project for the
installation of Jet A-1 underground pipeline through
Jahurul Haque Base, Bangladesh Air Force,
Chattogram and Shah Amanat Airport, Chattogram to
supply Jet A-1 fuel to the Company’s Jet A-1 depot
adjoining Shah Amanat Airport through pipeline from
the Company’s Main Installation in Patenga, has been
approved and Notification of Award (NOA) has been
issued in favor of contractor selected through
international tender.

4) A project titled “Jet A-1 Pipeline from Pitolganj (near
Kanchan Bridge) to Kurmitola Aviation Depot (KAD)
including Pumping Facilities” for easy, safe and
environmentally friendly oil transportation from Pitolganj,
Narayanganj to Kurmitola Aviation Depot with BPC
funding and management of Padma Oil Company Limited
has been adopted. The installation work of 15 km pipeline
has already been completed and the construction of the
Jet A-1 depot at Pitolganj is in progress. If the project is
implemented, the supply of Jet A-1 at Hazrat Shahjalal
International Airport will be ensured as per the increased
demand and the Company will benefit financially.

5) To bring the operational activities of three marketing
oil companies' main installations in Chattogram including
Padma Oil Company Limited under the scope of
automation, an international consultation firm has already
performed the feasibility of the project and prepared
Front End Engineering and Design (FEED). To appoint
an EPC contractor, the DPP of the project has already
been prepared based on submitted FEED documents
and sent to the ministry for approval.

6) A consultancy firm has already been appointed for
the automation of operational activities in various
depots established in different places of the country.

7) To expand the business of the Company,
construction work of a permanent riverine depot in place
of the barge depot at Bhairab Bazar has been started
and construction work of the foundation of 6 tanks has
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already been completed. A tender will be floated very
soon to appoint the tank fabrication contractor.

Future action plans to increase the Company’s Operating Capability:

1) To construct a permanent riverine depot in place of
the barge depot at Barisal;

2) To construct two storage tanks of fuel oil with
10,000 metric tons’ storage capacity each at the
Company’s Main Installation, Guptakhal;

3) Construction of full phases of Cox’s Bazar aviation
depot including land arrangement as well as
infrastructural development with international standard
facilities for supplying aviation Jet A-1 fuel;

4) Construction of full phases aviation depot including
land arrangement as well as infrastructural
development with international standard facilities at
Sayedpur and Jashore after feasibility study for
supplying of aviation Jet A-1 fuel

5) To increase the storage capacity of fuel oil according to the demand;

6) To bring sales and accounts-related activities of the
Company’s all offices/installation/depots under automation;

7)To modernize firefighting facilities in the Company’s
Main Installation and depots; and

8) Acquisition and implementation of financing
profitable projects in the Company’s owned unused
land at different places in the country.

Industrial Relation:

The industrial relations of the Company remained
harmonious and peaceful during the year. The
Company has been taking initiatives to exploit the
inherent strengths of its people and improving the work
culture and operating & maintenance practices.
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Padma Oil Company Limited

i. Directors' Declaration

The Directors also report that:

affairs, result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

ANNEXURE-

The financial statements of the Company present a true and fair view of the Company's state of

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial

statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

(IAS) as applicable in Bangladesh.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards

The Internal Control System is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored.

f)  There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

ii. The number of Board Meeting and the Attendance & Remuneration of Directors during the year 2022-2023

Name of Directors Designation Meeting held Attended i'n Rerr.nuneration

While a Member | No. of Meeting (in Taka)
Dr. Md. Khairuzzaman Mozumder | Ex-Chairman 07 07 56,000
Mr. Md Mahbub Hossain Ex-Chairman 08 08 64,000
Mr Bashudeb Ganguly Independent Director 15 15 120,000
Mr Kabirul Ezdani Khan Ex-Director 15 15 120,000
Dr. Mohd. Sher Al Ex-Director 02 02 16,000
Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim Independent Director 15 15 120,000
Mr. Kazi Mohammad mozammel Hogue | Director 15 15 120,000
Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain Director 13 13 104,000
Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid Ex-Shareholder Director 15 12 96,000
Mr. Suzadur Rahman Director 15 14 112,000
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman Managing Director 06 06 48,000
Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal Ex-Managing Director 08 08 64,000

Total | 10,40,000
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ANNEXURE-2
Pattern of Shareholding as on 30 June 2023
1 Name of the Shareholders Nos. of Share | Percentage
of Share
A Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 49455666 50.35
United Enterprises & Co Ltd 2023617 2.06
B Public Institutions:
Agrani Bank Ltd 560173
Janata Bank Limited 1788514
Sonali Bank Limited 926000
Basic Bank Ltd 192180
Bangladesh Shilpa Bank 346414
BDBL 211766
Bangladesh Shilpa Rin Sangstha 2201004
Bangladesh Commerce Bank 30000
Bangladesh Samabaya Bank Ltd. 196465 6452516 6.57
] ICB :
ICB 7726218
ICB Unit Fund 520401
ICB Bond 269644
Bangladesh Fund 1675625
Others 662205 10854093 11.05
D Private Institutions: 14127545 14.38
E. Foreign Investors 812119 0.83
F. Individuals (Bangladeshi) 14507194 14.76
98232750 100
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. Percentage
Particular Nos. of Share| ~ ¢ Share Remarks
(i) | Chairman, Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children :
Chairman :
Mr. Md. Nurul Alam - - Nominated
by EMRD
Directors:
Mr. Bashudeb Ganguly - - Independent
Director
Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim - - Do
Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque - - Nominated by
BPC/EMRD
Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain - - EMRD
Mr. Md. Tarikul Islam Khan - - EMRD
Mr. Suzadur Rahman - - EMRD
Mr. Kutubuddin Akhter Rashid 2023617 2.06 Shareholder
Director
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman - - Nominated by
BPC/EMRD
Chief Executive Officer and his spouses & minor
children:
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman - -
Company Secretary and his spouse & minor children:
Mr. Ali Absar - -
CFO and his spouse & minor children:
Mr. Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA - -
Head of Internal Audit and his Spouse & minor children:
Mr. A KM Fazle Elahee 110 -
(iii)] Executives (Top five salaried persons other than
CEO, CFO, CS, HIA).
1. Mr. C.M Ziaul Hassan GM (HR & Admin) - -
2. Dr. Md. Alamgir Chowdhury Chief Medical Officer - -
3. Mr. Sheikh Al-Mamun DGM (Avn.) 1,200 -
4. Mr. Md. Roman Chowdhury DGM (Sales) - -
5. Mr. Asif Malek DGM (Ops) 39 -
(iv) | Shareholding ten percent (10%) or more voting
interest in the company.
1. Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 49455666 50.35
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ANNEXURE-3
Five years Performance at a glance _
Taka in Lac
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Tangible fixed assets 29,323.94 27,400.89 23,993.80 23,209.76 23,777.07
8 Investment - Long Term 2,000.00 59,822.01 16,013.30 - -
g Investment - Depreciation Fund 20,802.48 17,752.21 16,143.04 13,798.85
QS Others currents assets 1,001,673.65 626,278.03 |  494,146.16 498,471.90 | 1,324,927.21
= |Cash at bank balances 466,864.23 | 389,675.15 |  390,051.00 394,291.62 |  313,373.90
g Total assets 1520,664.30 | 1120,928.28 | 940,947.30| 929,772.13 | 1662,075.18
8 liabilities & provisions 1,320,796.78 | 943,734.54 | 775,512.44 774,918.43 | 1,521,750.59
L |Equity 199,867.52 177,193.74 | 165,434.86 154,853.70 | 140,327.59
Total liabilities 1520,664.30 | 1120,928.28 | 940,947.30| 929,772.13 | 1662,078.18
Net assets per share 203.46 180.38 168.41 157.64 142.85
Operating earnings
on petroleum products 24,378.71 21,818.92 21,374.81 21,846.45 28,857.11
on agro-chemicals (212.52) (283.98) (293.88) (287.601) (423.82)
Other income 46,268.28 34,056.00 31,217.80 39,777.86 35,194.67
Total earnings 70,434.47 55,590.94 52,298.73 61336.70 63,627.95
2 |Overheads 21,940.56 21,669.68 19,039.46 20,830.39 20,915.20
% Financial expenses 2,513.64 2,496.85 2,456.05 2,210.40 2,604.31
Lg Contribution to WPPWF 2,299.01 1,571.22 1,540.16 1,914.80 2,005.42
2 |Total expenses 26,753.21 25,737.75 23,035.67 24,955.59 25,524.93
B [Profit before income tax 43,681.26 29,853.19 29,263.06 36,381.11 38,103.03
Provision for income tax 8,728.39 5,815.21 0,402.81 9,084.74 9,547.84
Profit after income tax 34,952.87 24,037.97 22,860.25 27,296.37 28,555.18
Return on shareholders funds (%) 17.49 13.57 13.82 17.63 20.35
Return on Assets (%) 2.30 2.14 2.43 2.94 1.72
Earning per shate 35.58 24.47 23.27 27.79 29.07
Human resources ( Nos ) 79 930 959 1009 1025
‘é .. Executives 220 229 228 242 253
g % Staff 659 701 731 767 772
&0 g Total earnings per employee 80.13 59.78 54.53 60.79 62.08
g @ |Operating cost per employee 27.58 24.99 21.46 22.54 22.36
2 Net profit per employee 49.69 32.10 30.51 36.06 37.17
Cost to income ratio 34.72 43.47 41.10 37.56 36.96
.9 Authorized capital 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
3 2 Paid-up capital 9,823.27 9,823.27 9,823.27 9,823.27 9,823.27
E “E’ Retained earnings 190,030.72 167,370.47 | 155,611.59 145,030.43 130,504.32
Adequacy current ratio 1.15 1.19 1.21 1.20 1.09
® -g Market Price per share ( DSE ) 209.20 214.10 203.80 166.20 230.60
% g Dividend - Cash ( Per share ) 135% 125% 125% 125% 130%
g Capital earning ratio 3.56 2.45 2.33 2.78 2.91

®
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Declaration by CEO and CFO
07 November 2023

To

The Board of Directors
Padma Oil Company Limited
Strand Road, Chattogram.

Subject: Declaration on Fihancial Statements for the year ended on 30.06.2023

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/ CMRRCD/
2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange
Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that :

1) The Financial Statements of Padma Oil Company Limited for the year ended on 30.06.2023 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IASs) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed;

2) The estimate and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable
basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and
fairly presented in its financial statements;

4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal
control and maintenance of accounting records;

5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements
is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-

i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30.06.2023 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standands and applicable laws.

ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of
Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

— \
(Md. Masudur Rahman) (Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA)
CEO & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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Annexure -B

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & CO
Chartered Accountants

Certificate as per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)
Report to the Shareholders of Padma Oil Company Limited
On compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Padma Oil Company Limited for
the year ended on 30 June 2023. This Code relates to the Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD /2006-158/ 207/
Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance
to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code as well as the provision of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted
by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent
with any Condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after
due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated
in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission, subject to the
remarks and observation as reported in the attached compliance status.

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this code.

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act,
1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d)  The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

Place : Chattogram

Dated : 07 December 2023 For Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants

Showkat Hossain, FCA
Senior Partner
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Annexure- C
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 03 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 ( Report Under Condition No. 9):

.y Compliance status |
Conlg.:’tlon Title . Not Remarks (if any)
. Complﬂ complieﬂ
1 | 2 | 3 [ 4 | 5 |
| 1 | Board of Directors | | | |

1.1 Size of the Board of Directors: The total number of members of a 7z Cg:;;;‘e’grgfigg
company’s Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “Board”) shall not (Nine) members
be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

1.2 Independent Directors: All companies shall have effective representation
of independent directors on their Boards, so that the Board, as a group,
includes core competencies considered relevant in the context of each
company; for this purpose, the companies shall comply with the following:

1.2(a) At least 2 (Two) directors or one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in % There are 2 (Two)
the company’s Board, whichever is higher, shall be independent directors; D',”detpenﬁiem
any fraction shall be considered to the next integer or whole number for Bg:ﬁjogfs,:',%cf
calculating number of independent director(s);

1.2(b) Without contravention of any provision of any other laws, For the purpose
of this clause “independent director” means a director -

1.2(b)(i) | who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one
percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the company; 4

1.2(b)(ii) | who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the company’s
any sponsor or director or nominated director or shareholder of the company
or any of its associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding The Independent
entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of the total paid-up v Directors
shares of the company on the basis of family relationship and his or her dec'a:?d their
family members also shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company: SIS
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister,
son-indlaw and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members;

1.2(b)(iii)| who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding 2 >
(two) financial years; Do

1.2(b)(iv)| who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, .
with the company or its subsidiary or associated companies; 4

1.2(b)(v) | who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) holder, >
director or officer of any stock exchange; 2o

1.2(b)(vi)| who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of any v
member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital market; Do

1.2(b)(vii) | who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive
during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory v o
audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal audit services or audit firm
conducting special audit or professional certifying compliance of this Code.

‘ 1.2(b)(viii) | who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies | v | | Do

1.2(b)(ix) | who has not been reported as a defaulter in the latest Credit Information
Bureau (CIB) report of Bangladesh Bank for non-payment of any loan or any v Do
advance or obligation to a bank or Financial Institution; and
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance status I

Complied |

Not Remarks (if any)
complied

‘ 1.2(b)(x) |

who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude

|

The Independent
Directors declared their
compliances.

1.2 (c)

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and approved by
the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) "provided that the
Board shall appoint the independent director , subject to prior consent of the
commission, after due consideration of recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the company

v

1.2 (d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than 90
(ninety) days

1.2 (e)

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3 (three)
years, which may be extended for 1 (one) tenure only

1.3

Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

1.3(a)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able
to ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate
laws and can make meaningful contribution to the business

The qualifications

and background of
two ID justify their
abilities as such.

[130) |

Independent director shall have following qualifications:

1.3(b)(i)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company or a member of any
national or international chamber of commerce or registered business association; or

- Not Applicable

1.3(b)ii)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than Chief
Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief
Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head
of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with
equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or of a listed company; or

- Not Applicable

1.3(b)iii)

Former or existing official of government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory
body in the position not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has at
least educational background of bachelor degree in economics or commerce or
business or Law:

Provided that in case of appointment of existing official as independent director, it
requires clearance from the organization where he or she is in service; or

1.3(b)(iv)

University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or Commerce
or Business Studies or Law; or

Not Applicable

1.3(b)(v)

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High Court
Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and
Management Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified
Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant
or Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification

- Not Applicable

1.3(c)

The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences in any
field mentioned in clause (b)

1.3(d)

In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be relaxed subject
to prior approval of the Commission.

- Not Applicable

1.4

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director
or Chief Executive Officer.-

1.4(a)

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director (MD) and/or
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the company shall be filled by different individuals;

1.4(b)

The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a listed
company shall not hold the same position in another listed company;

1.4(c)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-executive
directors of the company;

1.4(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the
Chairperson and the Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer;




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Compliance status
Condition | 2 _I
No.

Title Remarks (if an;
Compliedl cog;fied | ( V)

1.4(e) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members may &‘;’:ggnﬁggt%egaaéé
elect one of themselves from non executive directors as Chairperson for that R R . “and theh
. ’ . . A Irperson \
particular Board’s meeting; the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall T
be duly recorded in the minutes. meetings
1.5 The Directors’ Report to Shareholders:
The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or
disclosures in the Directors’ Report prepared under section 184 of the Companies
Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIII of 1994):-
1.5(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry; , rgg‘;_f’,g‘;f;‘;ijgt
compliance of this
code
‘ 1.5(ii) | The segment-wise or product-wise performance | v | | Do
1.5(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to v Do
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;
1.5(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, v Do
where applicable
1.5(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their implications v a’:g:#gtrﬁa“ﬁ;
(gain or loss); year. :
1.5(vi) A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a statement v
showing amount, nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis of
transactions of all related party transactions;
1.5(vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues No such matter
and/or any other instruments v arlsenyfél;rrlng the

1.5(viii) | An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for Initial

Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct - - Not Applicable

Listing, etc.;
1.5(ix) An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly No such matter
Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements; = = a”se”y‘;‘;rr'”g the
‘ 1.5(x) | A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors; | v | |
1.5(xi) A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of the
issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash v

flows and changes in equity;

1.5(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been
maintained;

1.5(xiii) A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied
in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are 4
based on reasonable and prudent judgment

1.5(xiv) | A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have v
been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any
departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

1.5(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been v
effectively implemented and monitored

1.5(xvi) A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions
by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly v

and have effective means of redress;
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Compliance status
Conlgiotion Title P TI Remarks (if any)
: Cornplil compliﬁ
1.5(xvii) | A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s ability to 4 The management
. . . . . i has disclosed the
continue as a going concern, if the issuer company is not considered to be a fact.
going concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be disclosed:
1.5(xviii) | An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's operating results of 4
the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be
explained.
1.5(xix) | A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) v

years shall be summarized;

The company have

1.5(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend declared

(cash or stock) for the year; Laklin G2ty grii\gg.end
1.5(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been or N/A No iﬂtdegicf{;g;\éidend

shall be declared as interim dividend;

1.5(xxii) | The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each 4
director;

1.5(xxiii)| A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number
of shares (along with name-wise details where stated below) held by:-

1.5(xxiii) | Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties v

(a) (name-wise details),

1.5(xxiii) | Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, v

(b) Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor children
(name-wise details);

1.5(xxiii) | Executives; and 4

(9

1.5(xxiii) | Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company v/

(d) (name-wise details);

Explanation: For the purpose of this clause, the expression “executive” means
top 5 (five) salaried employees of the company, other than the Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance.

1.5(xxiv) [ In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure
on the following information to the shareholders:

1.5(xxiv) | a brief resume of the director; v
(a)

1.5(xxiv) | nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas; and v
(b)

1.5(xxiv) | names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and the v
(c) membership of committees of the Board;

1.5(xxv) | A Management's Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting v

detailed analysis of the company’s position and operations along with a brief
discussion of changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on:

‘ 1.5(xxv)(a) | accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements; | v | |

1.5(xxv)(b) | changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing the effect 4
on financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes;

1.5(xxv)(c) | comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or v
results and financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with
immediate preceding five years explaining reasons thereof;
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Compliance status
Condition | 2 —I

Title Remarks (if an
No. Complied | Not ( y)
v

complied

1.5(xxv)(d)| compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as
cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

‘ 1.5(xxv)(e) | briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe; | 4 | |

1.5(xxv)(f) | risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk v
and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

1.5(xxv)(g)| future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and 4
financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained
to the shareholders in the next AGM;

1.5(xxvi) | Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required v
under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A;

1.5(xxvii) | The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this Code v
as required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and
Annexure-C;

1.5(xxviii)| The Directors' report to the shareholders does not require to include the business v
strategy or technical specification related to products or services, which have
business confidentiality

[1.6

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of the v
meetings as well as keep required books and records in line with the provisions of
the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are
not inconsistent with any condition of this Code.

‘ 1.7 | Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer | | |

1.7(a) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson
of the Board, other board members and Chief Executive Officer of the company;

1.7(b) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website of the
company including, among others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality; conflict v
of interest; compliance with laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider trading;
relationship with environment, employees, customers and suppliers; and independency.

| 2 | Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.-

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company shall be N/A POCL does

made applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company; Subsig;twh;‘ﬁpany

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shall be a N/A Do
director on the Board of the subsidiary company;

2(c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed for review N/A Do
at the following Board meeting of the holding company;

2(d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall state that N/A Do
they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial statements, N/A Do
in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS).=

3.1 Appointment | |

3.1(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a v
Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit

and Compliance (HIAC);
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Compliance status
Condition | B —I

Title Remarks (if an;
No. Compliedl coggfied | : v

3.1(b) The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

v

3.1(c) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any executive
position in any other company at the same time:

3.1(c) i Provided that CFO or CS of any listed company may be appointed for the same position
in any other listed or non-listed company under the same group for reduction of cost or
for technical expertise, with prior approval of the commission:

Provided further that the remuneration and perquisites of the said CFO or CS shall be
shared by apponting companies proportionately;

3.1(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO,
the HIAC and the CS;

3.1(e) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their position without
approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock
exchange(s).

3.2 Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the meetings of v
the Board:

Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend such part of a
meeting of the Board which involves consideration of an agenda item relating to
their personal matters.

3.3 Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

3.3(a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed 4
financial statements for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

3.3(a)(i) | these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any v
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; and

3.3(a)(ii) | these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs v
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws;

3.3(b) The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of v
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the
company’s Board or its members;

‘ 3.3(c) | The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. | v | |

4 Board of Directors’ Committee.-
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least
following sub-committees:

| 4(i) | Audit Committee; and | v | |
‘ 4(ii) | Nomination and Remuneration Committee. | v | |
E | AuDIT COMMITTEE: | | |
| 5.1 | Responsibility to the Board of Directors: | | |
5.1(a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a subcommittee of the v
Board;
5.1(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial v
statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and
in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business;
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Compliance status
Condition | Title B —I

Remarks (if an;
L Compliedl corggfied | ¢ v

5.1(c) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the v B

Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing. Writgﬂhig m‘il;o
Committee

| 5.2 | Constitution of the Audit Committee: | | |

5.2(a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members; v Co}*‘;i{?e“g‘ﬁas

been comprised of
4(four) members

5.2(b) The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be v
non-executive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board
and shall include at least 1 (one) independent director;

5.2(c) All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate” and at least v
1 (one) member shall have accounting or related financial management
background and 10 (ten) years of such experience;

Explanation: The term “financially literate” means the ability to read and
understand the financial statements like statement of financial position,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
cash flows statement and a person will be considered to have accounting or
related financial management expertise if he or she possesses professional
qualification or Accounting or Finance graduate with at least 10 (ten) years of
corporate management or professional experiences.

5.2(d) When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is any v
circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the Board
shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or not
later than 60(sixty) days from the date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure
continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee;

‘ 5.2(e) | The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; | v | | ‘

5.2(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at least 1 v
(one) independent director.

Chairman of the Audit Committee: | | | |

5.3

5.3(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be Chairperson v
of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent director;

5.3(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, No such matter
in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as required under a”se”y‘é‘;rri_"g the
condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall

be duly recorded in the minutes.

5.3(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual General v
Meeting (AGM):

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any other
member from the Audit Committee shall be selected to be present in the annual
general meeting (AGM) and reason for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM

‘ 5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee | | |

5.4(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial
year: Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting may
be convened at the request of any one of the members of the Committee;

5.4(b) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in presence
of either two members or two-third of the members of the Audit Committee,
whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is a must.
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Complian tat
C°“g‘i,tﬂ Title co fj ce%l Remarks (if any)
) omplie complied
5.5 Role of Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee shall:
‘ 5.5(a) | Oversee the financial reporting process; | v/ | | ‘
‘ 5.5(b) | monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; | v/ | | ‘
5.5(c) monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately v
resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review
of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;
| 5.5(d) | oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; 4
5.5(e) hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial v
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;
5.5(f) review along with the management, the annual financial statements before v/
submission to the Board for approval:
5.5(g) review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial v/
statements before submission to the Board for approval,
|5-5(h) | review the adequacy of internal audit function; | v | | |
5.5(i) review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual v/
Report;
| 5.5(j) | review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management; | v | | |
5.5(k) review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by v
statutory auditors;
5.5(1) oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of
expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the <
performance of external auditors; and
5.5(m) oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat
Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes
stated in relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the Commission:
Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the i
uses or applications of the proceeds by major category (capital expenditure, sales B B flotidpplicable
and marketing expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of
their quarterly declaration of financial results: Provided further that on an annual
basis, the company shall prepare a statement of the proceeds utilized for the
purposes other than those stated in the offer document or prospectus for publication
in the Annual Report along with the comments of the Audit Committee.
| 5.6 | Reporting of the Audit Committee; | | | |
| 5.6(a) | Reporting to the Board of Directors: | | | |
| 5.6(a)(i) | The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board. | v/ | | |
5.6(a)(ii) | The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the
following findings, if any:-
" : : ) Th
5.6(a)(ii) | report on conflicts of interests; reporgﬁ,;"ggg‘:of
(a) - - conflict of interest

for the year ended
30th June 2023

No such matter

5.6(a)(ii) | suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the ) ) arisen during the

(b) internal audit and compliance process or in the financial statements; year.
5.6(a)(ii)| suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including securities related laws, v DO
(c) rules and regulations; and
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Complian tat
Conlcéti)tion | Title c ° :’ ﬂ <= ﬁl Remarks (if any)
' oI D.oE complied

5.6(a)(ii)| any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be disclosed to the v a'\rligeS#gh ﬁaﬁti;

d) Board immediately; ye:r. °

5.6(b) Reporting to the Authorities:

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which has material

impact on the financial condition and results of operation and has discussed with the i
Board and the management that any rectification is necessary and if the Audit - - e el
Committee finds that such rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit

Committee shall report such finding to the Commission, upon reporting of such matters

to the Board for three times or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of

first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.

5.7 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: Cog]*rﬁtfe‘éd&c)
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made y Report is disclosed
to the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed regé}{‘gn%”;‘i‘éﬂed
by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of by the Chairman of
the issuer company. the AC

‘ 6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).- | |
‘ 6.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors | |

6.1(a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a v
sub-committee of the Board

6.1(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence v
of directors and top level executive as well as a policy for formal process of
considering remuneration of directors, top level executive;

6.1(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing 7
covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).

| 6.2 Constitution of the NRC

6.2(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an

independent director; v
‘ 6.2(b) At least 02 (two) members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors; | v |
‘ 6.2(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board; | v |

6.2(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the v
Committee;

6.2(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the
Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy - - Not Applicable
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the
Committee;

6.2(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert
and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting = = Not Applicable
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external
expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

‘ 6.2(9) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; | 4 |

6.2(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least %

an independent director;
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. Compliance status
Cong:)twn | Title c . ﬂ @I Remarks (if any)
: CIND L E complied
6.2(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any
remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than v
Director’s fees or honorarium from the company.
6.3 Chairperson of the NRC |
6.3(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee, v
who shall be an independent director;
6.3(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may elect one of v
themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of absence of the
regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes;
6.3(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to answer
the queries of the shareholders: Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, v
any other member from the NRC shall be selected to be present in the annual general
meeting (AGM) for answering the shareholder’s queries and reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM.
[ 64 | Meeting of the NRC |
‘ 6.4(a) | The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year v |
6.4(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon request by any v
member of the NRC
6.4(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either two 2
members or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is must as required under condition No. 6(2)(h)
6.4(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes and v
such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC.
| 65 | Role of the NRC
6.5(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the v
shareholders;
6.5(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with v
recommendation to the Board:
6.5(b)(i) | formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and ;
independence of a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:
6.5(b)(i) | the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain v
(a) and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully;
6.5(b)(i) | the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate v
(b) performance benchmarks; and
6.5(b)(i) | remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and
. . . Lo . 4
(c) incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company and its goals;
6.5(b)(ii)| devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, v
ethnicity, educational background and nationality;
6.5(b)(iii) | identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend v
their appointment and removal to the Board;
6.5(b)(iv) | formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the v
Board;
6.5(b)(v) | identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their v
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and




Condition
No.
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Compliance status |

Not

Remarks (if any)
ied |

Complied |

compl

6.5(b)(vi] developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and v
training policies;
6.5(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation v
criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report.
7 EXTERNAL/STATUTORY AUDITORS:
The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the
following services of the company, namely:-
7.1(i) appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions v
7.1(ii) financial information systems design and implementation; v
7.1 (iii) book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements; 4
7.1(iv) broker-dealer services; 4
7.1(v) actuarial services; v
. . . . . . . . ‘/
7.1(vi) internal audit services or special audit services; The Statutory
B . . . i v Auditors Hussain
7.1(vii) any service that the Audit Committee determines; Farhad & Co. and
MM Rahman & Co.
7.1 (viii) audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as required under v have declared their
condition No. 9(1); and independence
7.1(ix) any other service that creates conflict of interest.
7.2 No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of the
company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that company;
his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in the said company:
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and
daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members.
7.3 Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the Shareholders’ v
Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the
queries of the shareholders.
8 Maintaining a website by the Company
8.1 The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock 4 www.pocl.gov.bd is
exchange. the company’s
. . L. official website
8.2 The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing. linked with the
. . . . ] ] v website of stock
8.3 The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as required exchange.
under the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s).
9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance.
9.1 The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional Accountant or
Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered
Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and shall v
such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. Explanation: “Chartered
Accountant” means Chartered Accountant as defined in the Bangladesh Chartered
Accountants Order, 1973 (President's Order No. 2 of 1973); “Cost and Management
Accountant” means Cost and Management Accountant as defined in the Cost and
Management Accountants Ordinance, 1977 (Ordinance No. LIl of 1977); “Chartered
Secretary” means Chartered Secretary as defined in the Chartered Secretaries Act, 2010.
9.2 The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this Corporate v
Governance Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.
9.3 The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in v

the directors’ report whether the company has complied with these conditions or not.
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. . . Annexure- D
Management Discussion And Analysis

of Company’s Position And Operation
The financial and operating performances of Padma Oil Company Limited during the fiscal year 2022-23 have
been satisfactory. We made every effort to accomplish our job effectively and efficiently in FY 2022-23. We are
focusing on sustainability and efficiency.

It appears from the business outcome that the sales volume of the Company’s petroleum products stood at
26.89 lakh metric tons in FY 2022-23 as compared to 25.45 lakh metric tons in FY 2021-22. The total sales of
petroleum products of the Company increased by 5.66% in the reported year as compared to the last year. On
the other hand, sales of agrochemicals products of the Company increased by 2.11% to 2,177 metric tons in
the reported year which was 2,132 metric tons in the last year. As a result, the Company was able to make a
net profit before tax of Taka 436.81 crore in the reported year as against Taka 298.53 crore in the last year.

The overall Company’s position has been reflected in the financial statements which have been prepared and
presented in accordance with all generally accepted accounting principles. The overall Company’s position and
future planning, methods of preparation of financial statements have been summarized below:

Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following the accrual basis of accounting
except for the Cash Flow Statement in accordance with the International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020.
Accounting Policies and Estimates:

The details of accounting policies and estimates applied for the preparation of financial statements are
described in note no.: 2.00 of audited financial statements. There are no changes in accounting policies and
estimates for the fiscal year 2022-2023.

Comparative analysis of financial Performance:

Key financial data for the immediate preceding five years is shown in detail in Annexure-3 of the Directors’
Report. For comparison, financial results and financial position of the Company for the financial year 2022-2023
with immediate preceding five years are given below:

Amount in Crore Taka

Financial and Operational results | 2022-2023 | 2021-2022 | 2020-2021 | 2019-2020 |2018-2019 | 2017-2018
Sales (MT in Lakh) 26.89 25.45 21.40 19.63 22.61 23.66
Net Earnings on petroleum products 243.79 218.19 213.75 218.46 288.57 301.32
Operating expenses 244 .55 241.72 214.95 230.40 235.19 226.42
Other Operating Income 122.81 76.16 42.30 84.53 80.66 74.07
Total operating profit 122.05 52.64 41.10 72.59 134.04 148.97
Profit after tax 349.53 240.38 228.60 272.96 285.55 335.80
EPS (Taka) 35.58 24.47 23.27 27.79 29.07 34.18
Net Asset Value per share (Taka) 203.46 180.38 168.41 157.64 142.85 126.78
Net operating cash flow per share (Taka) (51.99) 98.15 2.73 80.91 (52.29) (36.37)
Number of employees 879 930 959 1009 1025 1042
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Financial Performance of Peer Industry:

There are three major oil marketing companies in the petroleum industry namely Padma QOil Company Limited
(POCL), Meghna Petroleum Limited (MPL) and Jamuna Oil Company Limited (JOCL) under Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation. A comparison of three marketing companies’ financial and operational data during 2022-23 are

summarized below: ]
Amount in Crore Taka

Particulars POCL MPL JOCL
Sales (MT in Lakh) 26.89 26.20 19.48
Net earnings on petroleum products 243.79 283.04 138.43
Operating expenses (including financial expenses) 244.55 142.90 123.77
Other operating income 122.81 34.77 16.03
Total operating profit 122.05 174.91 30.69
Profit after tax 349.53 442,14 340.86
EPS (Taka) 35.58 40.86 30.87
Net Asset Value per share (Taka) 203.46 200.01 205.49
Net operating cash flow per share (Taka) (51.99) 100.07 109.01
Number of employees 879 373 477

Global and Local Economic Scenario:

The global economy has been experiencing the turmoil of price hikes and output fall due to the unprecedent
COVID-19 pandemic followed by the war in Ukraine. In the World Economic Outlook (WEO) April 2023, International
Monetary Fund (IMF) expected the global economy to slow down from 3.4 percent in 2022 to 2.8 percent in 2023 and
rebound to 3.0 percent in 2024. The slowdown of economic activity is observed due to spikes in commodity prices and
supply chain disruption driven by the effects of war. Sluggish growth rates between advanced economies and emerging
markets and developing economies will be divergent. Growth in advanced economies is expected to decline from 2.7
percent in 2022 to 1.3 percent in 2023 and rebound to 1.4 percent in 2024. In emerging markets and developing economies,
however, growth is expected to drop from 4.0 percent in 2022 to 3.9 percent in 2023 and rebound to 4.2 percent in 2024.
Bangladesh economy has recovered from the economic damage caused by the impact of COVID-19 and the ongoing
Russia-Ukraine crisis, although the recent slowdown in the global economy has adversely affected the country’s economic
growth. According to the provisional estimation of the Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), the country’s GDP growth
rate is 6.03% in FY 2022-23 which was 7.10% in FY 2021-22. The Government of Bangladesh has a visionary target to
build a durable and sustainable energy, power and transportation infrastructure in order to become a prosperous
nation.

Risk and Mitigation:

Risk factors of the petroleum Sector:

The economy of Bangladesh is growing faster and it creates an opportunity for the entire fuel industry and power
sector. There are some challenges in the business of petroleum products such as market competition with the
private sector, open market economy, fluctuations in the price of imported petroleum products, etc.

Risk Factors of the Agrochemical Sector:

More than 750 companies including some giant multinationals are heading to grab the market of agrochemicals.
There is a stiff competition in the agrochemical market. Besides, Bangladesh is among the most vulnerable
countries to climate change, which poses a long-term threat to the country’s agricultural sector, particularly in
areas affected by flooding, saline intrusion, and drought. Price factors of our quality products are very much

concern for us.
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Mitigation policy:

The Govt. of Bangladesh is emphasizing enacting favorable rules and policies to attract investors. We are
monitoring to identify and assess the potential challenges and to find a way to mitigate those challenges.
Various steps have been taken by the Company to increase the sales volume of petroleum products and to
mitigate the operating loss of the agrochemicals business. Autogas (LNG) marketing activities are being
undertaken at the filling stations under the Company’s marketing network along with petroleum products
nationwide. The Company has already sighed agreements with 9 autogas operators in this regard.

To mitigate the operating expenses of the agrochemicals business, the current market segment is reviewed
and the offices in the lesser selling areas are closed and integrated with the nearby offices. In addition, appropriate
steps have been taken to reduce overall operating costs in the sector by controlling expenditures through reorganizing
the manpower. A committee constituted by the Company is regularly reviewing the selling price of homogeneous
products of the competing companies and re-determining the price of the products from time to time accordingly. The
management of the Company is regularly monitoring the inherent business risk and taking corrective measures. As a
result, the Company was able to reduce a 25.00% operating loss in the agrochemicals business in the reported year
compared to the previous fiscal year.

Future Planning:

A development program has been undertaken for business expansion and smooth supply of fuel to the public by
establishing new depots, storage tanks and other physical infrastructures. The Company has taken the future
plans are narrated in detail under the head of ‘Future action plans to increase the Company’s Operating Capability’
in the Directors’ Repot.

The Company is also adhering to improve its performance through specialization, differentiation, segmentation

and overall diversification.

We hope we shall achieve our projected target and march forward in the years to come.

———
(Md. Masudur Rahman)
Managing Director
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53" Annual General Meeting

The 53rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Padma Oil Company Limited was held virtually through
Digital Platform on 1st January 2023 at 03-00 pm. Board Chairman Mr. Md. Mahbub Hossain presided
over the meeting. Directors of the Board Mr. Bashudeb Ganguly, Mr. Kabirul Ezdani Khan, Mr. Quazi Md.
Anwarul Hakim, Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque, Md. Zakir Hossain, Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter
Rashid, Mr. Suzadur Rahman, Managing Director Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal, Company Secretary Mr.

Noman Ahmed Taffader as well as BPC and Company's senior officials attended the Meeting.

After the recitation of verse from the Holy Quran, the Chairman welcomed the shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting. The meeting started with the Chairman's inviting comments on proceedings of the last
Annual General Meeting. The shareholders unanimously approved the audited financial statements and
proposed 125% cash dividends for the year ended 30 June 2022. Proposal for appointment of external
auditors M/s. M.M Rahman & Co. and M/s. Hussain Farhad & Co. Chartered Accountants for the year
2022-2023 was approved by the shareholders. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co. Chartered Accountant was
appointed by the shareholders to issue a certificate regarding compliance of the Corporate Governance
Code. Chairman Mr. Md. Mahbub Hossain and Mr. Suzadur Rahman were re-elected by the
shareholders.

A huge number of honorable shareholders participated in the AGM through a digital platform and they
made comments about the overall performance of the Company. The Company Secretary Mr. Noman
Ahmed Taffader read out the various comments made by the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
Mr. Md. Mahbub Hossain and Managing Director Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal replied to the queries and
explained various comments made by distinguished shareholders.

The Shareholders appreciated the Company's overall performance in their comments. The meeting

ended with a vote of thanks to the chair.
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Contribution & Value Additions
For the year ended 30 June 2023

|Particu|ars Taka In '000 |
30-Jun-23 % 30-Jun-22 %
Earnings on
Petroleum Products 2,437,871 2,181,893
Agro-chemicals trading (21,252) (28,398)
2,416,619 2,153,495
Other Income 4,626,828 3,405,601
Total value added 7,043,447 5,559,096
Distribution of added value
To Government as revenue & taxes 1,232,951 17.50 763,837 13.74
To Employees & others cost 835,937 11.87 913,868 16.44
To Financial expenses 251,363 3.57 249,685 4.49
To shareholders 1,227,909 17.43 1,227,909 22.09
To depreciation & retained earnings 3,495,287 49.62 2,403,796 43.24
7,043,447 100.00 5,559,096 100.00
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Dividend Distribution Policy

1. Introduction

Padma Oil Company Limited is one of the leading fuel oil as well as agrochemicals marketing company in the country
under Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation in 1977. In the year 1985, BOC transferred its entire property in Bangladesh including share of Burmah
Eastern Limited in favour of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) which was earlier listed with Dhaka Stock
Exchange Limited in 1976 and subsequently it was listed with the Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited in 1995. As per
terms of the transfer of BOC’s entire share to BPC, Burmah Eastern Limited was required to change its name and as such
subsequently the Company’s name was changed as “PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED” in the year 1988.

In compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03
dated 14 January 2021, the issuers of listed securities are required to formulate and disclose its Dividend Distribution
policy. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of Padma Oil Company Limited (herein after referred to as “the Company”)
has formulated and approved this Dividend Distribution Policy (herein after referred to as “the Policy”).

2. Definitions

“the Act” means the Companies Act 1994 as amended from time to time.

“Policy” means Dividend Distribution Policy.

“Applicable Laws” means the Companies Act,1994 & BSEC Rules, Regulations & Directives issued from time to time.
“the Company” means Padma Oil Company Ltd.

“AGM” means Annual General Meeting

“Board” means Board of Directors of Padma Qil Company Ltd.

“Shareholders” means Members whose name is registered in the Member Register of the Company.
“Shares” means Ordinary Equity Shares.

“Chairman” means the Head of the Board of Directors.

“MD & CEQO” means the Managing Director & the Chief Executive officer.

“Dividend” as defined under the Companies Act,1994.

“FRC” means the Financial Reporting Council as per the Financial Reporting Act,2015.

3. Objective of the Policy

The objective of this Policy is to provide clarity to stakeholders on the dividend distribution framework to be adopted
by the company for ensuring the right balance between the quantum of dividend paid and the amount of profits
retained in the business for various purposes. The Board of Directors (Member of the Board) shall recommend
dividend in compliance with this Policy, the Articles of Association of the Company, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1994, relevant Directives/Orders published by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, and other
applicable legal provisions.

4. Dividend Legal Framework

a. Provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company in reference to the Companies Act, 1994.

b. To comply with all the directives, orders etc. of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchanges as regards determination and declaration of dividends.
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c. To comply with the applicable tax laws in framing the dividend policy.

d. Preparation of financial statements with complete adherence to the applicable accounting and reporting standards
under International Accounting Standards (IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) etc be
amended/modified from time to time.

e. Circulars, Instructions, Directives issued time to time by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC).

f. Special Order/Directives issued by the government at any time.

5. Declaration of Dividend

Subject to the provisions of the Act, dividend shall be declared and paid out of the current year’s profit after tax of the
company or any other undistributed profit.

Before declaration of dividend, the Company may transfer a portion of its profits to reserves of the Company as may
be considered appropriate by the Board at its discretion.

The actual quantum of dividend pay-out on a yearly basis will be depended on the following factors:
5.1 Internal Factors: The Board shall consider the following internal factors:

a) Company’s Liquidity position including its present and expected obligations.

b) Profits earned & available for distribution during the financial year of the company.

¢) Accumulated Reserve including the retained earnings.

d) Present and Future Capital expenditure plans of the Company including organic/inorganic growth opportunities.
e) Future requirements of funds.

f) Earning stability.

g) Capital Restructuring Plan.

h) Past dividend trend of the Company and the industry.

i) Any other relevant or material factor as may be deemed fit by the Board.

5.2 External Factors: The Board shall consider the following external factors:

a) State of economy and capital markets.

b) Applicable taxes including dividend distribution tax.

¢) Shareholders Expectation.

d) Regulatory Changes: Introduction of new or changes in existing tax or regulatory requirements (including dividend
distribution tax) having significant impact on the Company’s operations or finances.

e) Technological changes which necessitate significant investment in the business of the Company.

f) To retain a larger portion of profit to build up reserves, in case of adverse economic scenario.

g) Inflation Rate & other economic factors.

h) Considering the restrictions, if any, imposed by the act and other applicable laws with regard to declaration of
dividend in order to ensure compliance with the applicable laws.

i) Force Majeure events include natural causes (fire, storms, floods, earthquake etc), governmental or societal
actions, infrastructure failures (transportation, energy) etc.

i) Any other relevant or material factors as may be deemed fit by the Board.

[ The Board may also nhot recommend a Dividend considering the various factors prevailing in the local & international
market and or economic uncertainty beside the issued mentioned in above 5.1 & 5.2]




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

6. Scope of the Policy
The Policy covers the following:
6.1 Dividend to Equity Shareholders of the Company:

At present the Company has only one class of equity shares. As and when the Company proposes to issue any other
class of equity shares, the Policy shall be modified accordingly.

6.2 Interim Dividend
a) Interim Dividend(s), if any, shall be declared by the Board.

b) In case no final dividend is declared for any particular financial year, interim dividend paid during that year, if any
shall be regarded as final dividend for the year in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

6.3 Final dividend

a) Recommendation, if any, shall be made by the Board, usually in the Board meeting that considers and approves
the annual financial statements, subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company.

b) The dividend as recommended by the Board shall be approved/declared in the AGM of the Company.

7. Dividend Pay Out Method and Timing

The Company shall distribute declared and duly approved dividend to all shareholders in a timely manner and in line
with Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission directions (as issued time to time) and any applicable local
laws, rules and regulations.

8. Unclaimed Dividend

Any unclaimed or unsettled dividend shall be managed in line with Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s
directions (as issued time to time) and any other applicable local laws, rules, and regulations.

9. Manner of Utilization of Retained Earnings

The retained earnings shall be deployed in line with the objects of the Company as detailed in Memorandum of Association
of the Company. The Company shall endeavor to utilize its retained earnings in a manner which shall be beneficial to the
interest of the Company and also its shareholders. The decision of utilization of the retained earnings shall be based on the
factors like strategic and long term plans of the Company, diversification opportunities, or any other criteria that may be
considered relevant by the Board in this regard.

10. Review

This Policy is issued with the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company and can be amended only with the
authority of the Board of Directors as may be deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Company. Any
content of this policy or any future change/amendment to thereof shall not contradict or be in conflict with any of the
provisions of the BSEC Directives issued from time to time. In such a situation, provisions of the BSEC directives shall
prevail.
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11. Conflict of Policy

In the event of the Policy being inconsistent with any regulatory provision, such regulatory provision shall prevail upon
the corresponding provision of this policy.

12. Amendment or Modification

The Board may, from time to time, make amendment(s)/ modify to this Policy to the extent required due to change in
applicable laws and/or regulations or as deemed fit on a review.

13. Disclaimer

The above Policy Statement does not induce investment in the Company or represent a commitment on the future
dividends of the Company but represents a general guidance on the Dividend Policy of the Company.

14. Disclosure

This Dividend Distribution Policy (as amended from time to time) will be uploaded on the Company’s website and in
the annual report and any other form as guided/ instructed from time to time by BSEC.
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee of Padma Oil Company Limited was formed by the Board of Directors of the Company in

accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Notification No-SEC/CMRRCD/
2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018.

The composition of present Audit Committee is as under :

Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim : Chairman

Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque : Member

Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain, Director : Member

Mr. Ali Absar : Secretary

Terms of Reference

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to ensure and to improve the adequacy of internal control system and

provides the update information to the Board of Directors. The Committee is empowered to examine the matter

relating to the financial and other affairs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover

all matters specified under Clause-5(5) of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Notification
date 3 June 2018.

Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall :-

a
a
a

g

oversee the financial reporting process;
monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced, including approval
of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval or adoption;

review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for

approval;

review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval;

review the adequacy of internal audit function;

review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report; the adequacy of
internal audit function;

review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management;
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(1 review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by the statutory auditors;

(1 oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time
required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors; and

[1 oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or
Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant offer document or prospectus

approved by the Commission:

Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the uses or applications of the
proceeds by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working capital, etc.), on a
quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of financial results:

Provided further that on an annual basis, the Company shall prepare a statement of the proceeds utilized for
the purposes other than those stated in the offer document or prospectus for publication in the Annual Report

along with the comments of the Audit Committee.

Number of Meeting
The Committee formally met five times during the period from July 2022 to June 2023.

Activities carried out by the Audit Committee :

During 2022-2023 the Audit committee carried out the following tasks:

(1 Reviewed the financial statements of FY 2022-23 submitted by the external auditors and put Committee’s
recommendations to the board;

(d Reviewed the quarterly and half-yearly financial statements of 2022-23 and put Committee’s recommendations
to the board;

[J Reviewed revised budget of the Company during 2022-23 including budget of 2023-24 and put Committee’s
recommendations to the board;

(1 Reviewed the audited accounts of POCL Depreciation Fund for the year 2021-2022.

The committee reviewed and discussed the financial reports preparation and the external audit report during
FY 2022-23. The committee found adequate arrangement to present a free and fair view of the activities and the financial
status of the Company, and did not find any material deviation, discrepancies or any adverse finding/observation in the

areas of reporting.

(g

(Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim)
Chairman
Audit Committee, POCL
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Report of The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Padma Oil Company Limited was formed on 10 November
2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Notification No-BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018. The policy on
nomination and remuneration of Directors and top level executives of the Company has been formulated by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) in compliance with the BSEC’s above notification on Corporate
Governance under directives of Energy and Mineral Resources Division under Ministry of Power Energy and
Mineral Resources and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation.

1. Composition:

1.1 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) shall be appointed by the Board of Directors (“Board”)
from among their members and shall consist not less than 3(Three) members,

1.2 In the event of any vacancy in the NRC, the Board shall within 3 (three) months appoint such number of new
members.

1.3 The appointment of a NRC member shall automatically be terminated if the member ceases to be a Director, or
as determined by the Board.

The composition of present Nomination and Remuneration (NRC) Committee is as under:

Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim, Independent Director : Chairman
Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque, Director : Member
Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain, Director : Member
Mr. Ali Absar, Company Secretary : Secretary

2. Duration of appointments

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the duration of appointments of the Committee shall commensurate with
the term and condition of appointment of the respective member to the Board of directors of the Company.

3. Chairman

3.1 The Chairman of the NRC shall be appointed by the board from among the members who is an Independent
Director.

3.2 In the absence of the Chairman of the NRC, the remaining members present shall elect one of their members as
chairman of the meeting.

3.3 The Chairman of the NRC shall report to the Board on any matter that should be brought to the Board’s attention
and provide recommendations of the NRC that require the Board’s approval at the Board Meeting.

4, Secretary of the NRC

4.1 The Board Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee and attend all meetings.

4.2 The Secretary shall draw up an agenda for each meeting, in consultation with the Chairman of the NRC. The
agenda shall be sent to all members of the NRC.

4.3 The Secretary shall prepare the Minutes of the NRC meeting and distribute it to each member. The Minutes of
the NRC shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting.
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4.4 The Minutes of the NRC meeting shall be maintained by the Secretary and be presented for approval of the
Board.

5. Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) have been determined by the
Board as per BSEC’s notification. The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top level execu-
tive as well as formal process of considering remuneration of directors and top level executives under directives of
Bangladesh petroleum Corporation.

6. Responsibilities

To oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the Board:

(i) Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
under directives of concerned Ministry and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) and recommend a
policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the
following:

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
suitable directors to run the company successfully under directives of concerned Ministry and
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC).

(b) The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;
and

(c) Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves as balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its
goals.

(i) Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational
background and nationality;

(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in top level executive
position in accordance with the criteria laid down by the concerned Ministry and Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation (BPC) and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board;

(v) Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer
or replacement and promotion criteria;

(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the Company’s human resources and training
policies.

(vii) To review and recommend the outcome of the evaluations and assessments to the Board concerning
the areas of continuous improvement.

(vii) To review and recommend the outcome of the evaluations and assessments to the Board concerning
the areas for continuous improvement.

(viii) To carry out such other duties or functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to time or
required by the regulatory authority.

7. Reporting

7.1 Minute of each Committee meeting will be disclosed at the next meeting of the Board. Periodically the Chair
of the Committee shall report to the Board on matters within its duties and responsibilities.
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7.2 The Committee shall compile a report of the work of the Committee in discharging its responsibilities for inclusion
in the Annual Report, including a description of significant issues dealt with by the Committee.

7.3 The Committee shall in its decision making, give due regard to any relevant legal or regulatory requirements,
and associated best practice guidance, as well as to the risk and reputation implications of its decisions (liaising
where relevant with other committees).

7.4 The Committee shall have access to sufficient resources in order to carry out its duties and have the power
to engage independent counsel and other professional advisers and to invite them to attend meetings.

8. 2022-2023 Meeting of NRC

During 2022-23, two meetings were held. The Committee made recommendations on the following activity:

8.1 To formulate the Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company;

9. Appointment of Director and top level executive :

The committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification and experience of the person for appointment
as Director and top level executive and recommend his/her appointment as per company’s policy

10. Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluations of performance of Director and top level executives yearly or at
such interval.

11. Retirement :
The Director and top level executives shall retire as per policy of the Company.
12. Policy for Remuneration to Directors/ Top level Executives:
a) The Remuneration is to be paid to top level executives as per Company’s policy.
b) The Directors may receive meeting fees and such other remuneration as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

13. Self-Assessment :
The Committee shall conduct an annual self-assessment of its activities under the Terms of Reference and
report any conclusions and recommendations to the Board and, as part of this assessment, shall consider
whether or not it receives adequate and appropriate support in fulfiiment of its role and whether or not its
annual plan of work is manageable.

14. Acknowledgement :
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expresses its sincere thanks to the Members of the Board
and the Management of the Company for their excellent support in carrying out the duties and
responsibilities of the committee during the period under review

(s

(Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim)
Chairman NRC
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M M Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT Chartered Accountants
To the shareholders of
PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of (POCL) Padma Oil Company Limited ("the
Company") which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period
from 01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the accompanying
financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2023 and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the period from 01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 and comply with the Companies Act, 1994,
the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. We would like to refer Note 04 , where as the company owns total 155.2869 acres of free hold land valued
at BDT 67,67,458. Whereas Land measuring 0.1956 acres out of 2.08 Acre of land at Paribagh , Dhaka, 0.82
acres out of 17.08 acres of land at Daulatpur depot & 0.36 acres out of 2.56 acres of land at Brahmanbaria
are yet to be registered in the name of POCL

2. We would like to refer Note 10, receivables on account of Biman Bangladesh Airlines Ltd (Biman), as per
para 5.5.9 of IFRS 9 at each reporting period an entity shall assess weather the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition. POCL & BIMAN performed an agreement dated 1st
November 2019 where both parties agreed on stuck up outstanding balance to BDT 21,081,997,274 (principle
14,495,252,989+ Interest @8% 6,686,744,284) & POCL subsequently realised BDT 8,066,680,892 which is
3.82% of agreed outstanding as on october 2023. It indicated that POCL need to measure a lifetime expected
credit losses & an allowance there on as per Para B5.5.2 of IFRS 9. However at Note 38 ,POCL shows the
interest receivable amount as contingent assets which is not supported by IAS 37 as the both POCL & BIMAN
agreed on such balances & thus POCL should recognise such interest receivable in current assets &
recognise the credit loss allowances as per para 5.5.9 & para B 5.5.2 of IFRS 9.

3. In reference to note 21.01, The actuarial valuation of the pension fund was conducted on June 30, 2016,
and the report was issued on January 24, 2018. Past service deficiencies in the funds were estimated at Tk.
937,423,000 for senior staff and Tk. 1,112,953,000 for junior staff as of June 30, 2016. To meet the past
service deficit, the valuer recommended to pay Tk. 450,000,000 each year over the next five years
(2018—-2022) and contributing 14% of the total basic salary for junior staff and 23.7% of the total basic salary
for senior staff each year in respect of current service costs. The company made provision for the deficit
amount of Tk. 2,025,000,000 over last 5 years resulting shortfall amount of Tk. 225,000,000 in this reporting
period.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standard on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in "Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements" section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Bangladesh and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a ban' ;for our

q@fied audit opinion.
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M M Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Emphasis of Matter

1. In reference to Note 11 due to BPC shows several stuck-up balances of BDT 158,827,085 which remains
due for long time. As per para 5.5.9 of IFRS 9 at each reporting period an entity shall assess weather the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. POCL need to measure a
lifetime expected credit losses & an allowance there on as per Para B5.5.2 of IFRS 9.

2. In reference to note 17, long term loan include BDT 73,385,086 which yet to be transferred to equity.

3. we would like to refer Note 12.01 some advances amounting to BDT 14,898,770 (Bata Shoe Limited BDT
12,785,608, Eastern Cables Ltd. 1,968,662, Imtex Packaging 144,500) remain unadjusted for long time
which needs to assess weather the expenses related to such advances remain unrecorded or advances
need to be written off if they are not realizable.

4. In reference to note 28.01 whereas rental from various parties for BDT 37,669,000 has been recognised as
income. Here compliance of investment property as per IAS 40 has not been adhered to.

5. In reference to Note 9 inventories includes some items the cost value of which BDT 88,653,452 remains
stringent for many years & POCL need to check weather such items have become obsolete & there is any
implication of written down to net realisable value from cost as per para 28 of IAS 2

6. As per IAS -36, para -09 “An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity shall estimate the
recoverable amount of asset”. During the year we did not notice any impairment test as per provision of
IAS-36.

7. We would like to refer note 24 which describes the status of tax payable /(refundable) presently lies before
the High court/Tribunal/DCT etc. long before & on receipts of the outcome thereon the excess/short
provision of tax can be ascertained.

However our opinion is not modified in respect to above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors' professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023. These matters, and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
n@ers below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statementsE ;
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Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

M M Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

IFRS 15-Revenue recognition

[Refer to note 25 and 3.09

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition has significant and
wide influence on financial statements.

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:

Revenue is recognised when the amounts
and the related costs are reliably measured,
and the performance obligation is completed
through passing of control to the customers.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized
when the company has delivered products to
the customers and control has passed. The
sales of the Company are derived from
factories and various depots located across
the country with relatively transactions of
small amounts. As a result, to obtain
sufficient audit evidence, magnitude of audit
work and resource are required.

- We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls
related to the Company’s sales process from end to end,
from contracts approval and sign-off, recording of sales, all
the way through cash receipts and customers’ outstanding
balances.

- We tested the completeness of journal entries compared
to financial statements and whether if there is any exception
existed that the debit accounts of sales recognition were
not related to cash and bank, trade receivable.

We identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Company
and therefore there is an inherent risk of
manipulation of the timing of recognition of
revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

- We conducted substantive testing of revenue recorded
over the year using sampling techniques, by examining the
relevant supporting documents including sales invoices
and challans. In addition, we confirmed certain customers’
receivable balances at the reporting date, selected on a
sample basis by considering the amounts outstanding with
those customers.

We focused on the proper cut-off of sales to
the Company's customers due to the fact
that the documents of confirming the
acceptance of the products were provided
by numerous customers based in different
locations. There is a risk of differences
between the timing of acceptance of the
products by the Company's customers and
when revenue was recorded. Accordingly,
there could be potential misstatements that
these revenue transactions are not recognised
in the proper reporting periods.

- Furthermore, we tested the sales transactions recognized
shortly before and after the reporting date, including the
sales returns (if any) recorded after that date, to examine
whether sales transactions were recorded in the correct
reporting periods.

¥
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IAS-16 : Property, plant and equipment

Refer to note 4 and 3.01

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The company has large amount and numbers
of property, plant and equipment items. Due to

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:
- Assessing the consistency of methodologies used for

technological and time obsolescence the

; ! . depreciating the assets;
impairment may exists.

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and

Management has concluded that there is no relevance of the accounting of PPE by management; and

impairment in respect all assets. This conclusion
required significant management judgment.
Hence we considered this to be a key audit
matter.

- For selected samples, performing physical verification of
assets to confirm existence;

- Checked disposal of assets whether those assets have
been deleted from asset register.

ISA-12 : Recognition and measurement of deferred taxes
Refer to note 16.00 and 3.08
The key audit matter

The Company recognizes deferred taxes relating to property,
plant and equipment, provision for bad debts which are very
complex in nature.

As such accounting for deferred taxes involves management
judgement in developing estimates of tax exposures and
contingencies in order to assess the adequacy of tax
provision. Hence, we considered this to be a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:
-Assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key controls in respect of the Company's
process of recognition of deferred taxes;

- Using our own tax specialists to evaluate the tax bases and
Company's tax strategy.

- Assessed the accuracy and completeness of deferred tax; and
-Evaluating the adequacy of the financial statements
disclosures, including disclosures of assumptions, judgements
and sensitivities.

As such accounting for deferred taxes involves management
judgment in developing estimates of tax exposures and
contingencies in order to assess the adequacy of tax
provision. Hence, we considered this to be a key audit matter.

Reporting on other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The draft annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’'s report but before finalization of the
annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report before finalization, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we will
communicate the matter to those charged with governance of the Company so that the matter is duly addressed in the
annual report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements of the Company in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange
Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting procesgﬂ




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

M M Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, we also report the following:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our
examination of those books;

iii) the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are
in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

iv) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Firm Name : M M Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Registration. : RJSC 109/8 & P.S 4/452/ICAB-84 R
Signature of the auditor :
Name of the auditor : Shaju Barua Sarwar Uddin FCA, Partner
ICAB Enrollment No : 1557 ICAB Enrollment No :0779
FRC Enroliment No: CAF-001-144 FRC Enroliment No: CA-001-136
DVC No. :2311111557AS326796 2311110779AS893216
Place : Chattogram Chattogram
Date : 11 November, 2023 11 November, 2023
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2023
Takain'000

Note(s) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,552,068 1,617,244
Capital work-in-progress 5 1,380,326 1,122,845
Investment - Depreciation Fund (FDR) 6 2,080,248 1,775,221
Investment - Long Term (FDR) 7 200,000 5,982,201
5,212,642 10,497,511
Current assets
Investment - Short Term (FDR) 8 - 5,667,946
Inventories 9 20,988,445 14,734,203
Accounts receivable 10 17,839,738 18,732,114
Due from affiliated companies 11 58,228,995 20,988,149
Advances, deposits and pre-payments 12 1,877,236 2,505,390
Advance Income tax 23.01 1,232,951 -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 46,686,423 38,967,515
146,853,788 101,595,317
TOTAL ASSETS 152,066,430 112,092,828
Shareholders’' equity
Share capital 14 982,327 982,327
Depreciation Fund -Reserve 15 364,942 269,896
Retained earnings 18,639,483 16,467,151
Total equity 19,986,752 17,719,374
LIABILITIES
Non-currentliabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities 16 105,642 128,729
Long Term Loan 17 183,463 183,463
289,105 312,192
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 18 37,894,795 11,017,956
Supplies and expenses payable 19 4,378,278 3,377,936
Due to affiliated companies 20 82,607,801 75,115,370
Other liabilities 21 5,760,932 4,284,863
Unclaimed dividend 22 50,719 63,014
Provision for income tax 23 1,098,048 202,122
131,790,573 94,061,261
Total Liabilities 132,079,678 94,373,453
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 152,066,430 112,092,828
Net AssetValue ( NAV ) per share 41 Tk.203.46 Tk.180.38

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes 01-49
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 Nov 2023
and were signed on its behalf by:

e ® )

Managing Director Director Director

Company Secretary

M M Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC : 2311111557AS326796
Place : Chattogram

Date : 11 November 2023

As per our annexed report of same date.

Soovwm Wdw
Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC : 2311110779AS893216
Place : Chattogram

Date : 11 November 2023
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Taka in '000
Note(s) 01 July 2022 to 01 July 2021 to
30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Gross earnings on Petroleum Products 25 2,616,382 2,343,909
Direct cost on Petroleum Products:
Packing Charges 25.01 (20,790) (21,819)
Handling Charges 25.01 (6,637) (7,623)

2,588,955 2,314,467
Net Operational (Loss)/Gain 31.01 (151,084) (132,574)
Net earnings on petroleum products 2,437,871 2,181,892
Operating expenses:
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 26 (2,194,057) (2,167,468)
Financial expenses 27 (251,364) (249,685)
Operating Profit on Petroleum (7,549) (235,260)
Other Operating Income 28 1,249,321 790,030
Operating (loss) /profit on Agro-chemical trading 29 (21,252) (28,398)
Total Operating Profit 1,220,520 526,372
Non-operating Income 30 3,377,507 2,616,070
Profitbefore WPPF and income tax 4,598,027 3,142,441
Contribution to WPPF and Welfare Fund 21.02 (229,901) (157,122)
Net Profit before income tax 4,368,126 2,985,319
Provision for Income tax:
Current tax 23 (895,926) (640,038)
Deferred tax 16 23,087 58,516

(872,839) (581,522)

Net Profit after tax 3,495,287 2,403,797
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,495,287 2,403,797
Earnings per share (EPS - basic) 32 Tk.35.58 Tk.24.47

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes 01-49
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 Nov 2023
and were signed on its behalf by:

Company Secretary

Managing Director

@

Director

As per our annexed report of same date.

M M Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC : 2311111557AS326796
Place : Chattogram

Date : 11 November 2023

6

Director

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC : 2311110779AS893216
Place : Chattogram

Date : 11 November 2023
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Balance as on 01 July 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Cash dividend declared for the year 2020-2021 -

Transferred to Depreciation Fund-Reserve -

Net profit for the year
Balance as at 30 June 2022

Balance as on 01 July 2022

Cash dividend declared for the year 2021-2022 -

Transferred to Depreciation Fund-Reserve -

Net profit for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2023

¥

Taka '000
Shafre Retai_ned Depreciation Total equity
Capital Earnings Fund Reserve
982,327 15,373,490 187,669 16,543,486
(1,227,909) - (1,227,909)
(82,227) 82,227 -

- 2,403,797 - 2,403,797
982,327 16467,151 269,896 17,719,374
982,327 16,467,151 269,896 17,719,374

(1,227,909) - (1,227,909)
(95,046) 95,046 -

- 3,495,287 - 3,495,287

982,327 18,639,483 364,942 19,986,752
Note 14.00 15.00

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes 01-49

and were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 Nov 2023

Company Secretary

and were signed on its behalf by:

Managing Director

%

Director

e}

Director
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Taka in '000
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and others 296,412,157 221,671,475
Paid to suppliers against petroleum and agro products and others (301,328,973) (211,852,552)
Receipts against other income 1,293,923 836,269
Interest and bank charges paid (251,364) (249,685)
Income tax paid (1,232,951) (763,837)
Net cash (used from)/generated by Operating Activities (5,107,208) 9,641,670
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital Expenditures (412,117) (561,913)
Investment -FDRs 11,145,120 (10,209,734)
Interest received from FDR/SND 3,332,799 2,373,995
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 518 2,000
Net cash (used from)/generated by Investing Activities 14,066,320 (8,395,652)
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividend paid (1,240,204) (1,343,603)
Net cash (used from)/generated by Financing Activities (1,240,204) (1,343,603)
D. NetIncrease/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B + C) 7,718,909 (97,585)
E. Opening cash and cash equivalents 38,967,515 39,065,100
Closing cash and cash equivalents 46,686,423 38,967,515
Operating Cash (Outflow)/Inflow per share (note - 42) (Tk.51.99) Tk.98.15

¥

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with annexed notes 01-49
and were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 Nov 2023
and were signed on its behalf by:

e @ Rt

Company Secretary Managing Director Director Director
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1.02

2.00
2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

Chartered Accountants

Padma Oil Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

REPORTING ENTITY

Legal Form of the entity

Padma Oil Company Limited (The 'company') was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on 27 April
1965 under the name and style of Burmah Eastern Limited having its registered office at Chattogram. In
1977, Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). The
name of the company was changed to Padma Oil Company Limited (POCL) with effect from 3rd September
1988 and its shares are listed with both the Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Limited and Dhaka Stock
Exchange (DSE) Limited.

Nature of the business

The principal activities of the Company are procurement, storage and marketing of Petroleum products,
Lubricants, Greases, Bitumen and LPG.

In addition, the Company manufactures Agro Chemicals products (Furadan) in its Granular Pesticides
Formulation plant and markets Furadan together with certain other imported Agro-Chemicals products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION, PRESENTATION & DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
(IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and
Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations in Bangladesh as per requirements
under the Financial Reporting Act 2015. Cash flows from operating activities are prepared under direct
method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020.

Basis of reporting

The financial statements are prepared and presented for external users by the company in accordance
with identified financial reporting framework. Presentation has been made in compliance with the requirements
of IAS 1 — “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The financial statements comprise of;

a) A statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023

b) A statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2023
c) A statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2023

d) A statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

e) Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information.

Other regulatory compliances

The Company is also required to comply with the following major laws and regulations along with the
Companies Act 1994:

i) The Income Tax Act 2023

i) The Income Tax Rules, 2023

iii)The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012

iv) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016
V) The Customs Act 1969

vi) Bangladesh Labour Law 2006

vii) The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

viii) The Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020

ix) Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993, etc.

Basis of measurement
The elements of Financial Statements have been measured on "Historical Cost " convention in a going
concern concept and on accrual basis.

Going concern

The company has adequate resources and intention to continue its operation as going concern for the
foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to adopt going concern basis in preparing the
Financial Statements.

The current revenue generations and resources of the company provide sufficient fund to meet the present
requirements of its existing business and operation.
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2.06 Comparative Information

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the preceding year in accordance with IAS-1:
Presentation of Financial Statements, for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the
narrative and scriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current year’s Financial
Statements. Prior year’s figures are rearranged wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability
with the current year.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT/Tk) which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in BDT has been rounded off to the nearest thousand Taka.
Consistency

Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies and methods of computation used in preparation of the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2023 are consistent with those policies and
methods adopted in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

a. Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period and

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period and

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IAS and IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements, Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies and assumptions and estimation
uncertainties that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
is included in the following notes:

Note 4: Property, plant and equipment
Note 9: Inventories

Note 10: Accounts receivable

Note 21: Other liabilities

Note 23: Income tax payable

Note 16: Deferred tax liabilities

Note 38: Contingent liabilities

Measurement of fair values

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the entity uses market observable data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.
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2.1

2.12

3.00

3.01
3.01.01

3.01.02

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorized in different levels
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Reporting period
These financial statements of the company cover one year from 01 July to 30 June and is followed
consistently.

Authorization for issue
These financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 have been authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors on 07 November 2023

Significant accounting policies

The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the company’s management for significant
transactions and events that have material effect within the framework of IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”, in preparation and presentation of financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout the year and were also consistent with those used in eatlier years, except otherwise stated.

For a proper understanding of the financial statements, these accounting policies are set out below in one
place as prescribed by the IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The recommendations of IAS-1
relating to the format of financial statements were also taken into full consideration for fair presentation.

3.01 Property, plant and equipment
3.02 Financial instruments

3.03 Inventories

3.04 Impairment

3.05 Employee benefits

3.06 Earnings per Share (EPS)

3.07 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
3.08 Taxation

3.09 Revenue

3.10 Other income

3.11 Events after the reporting period
3.12 Leases

3.13 Segment Reporting

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

All Property, Plant & Equipments are initially accounted for at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful lives except freehold land in accordance with IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost of self
constructed /installed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.

On retirement or otherwise disposal of property, plant and equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation
are eliminated, and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income which is determined with reference to the net book value of the assets and
the net sale proceeds.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefit embodied within the part will flow to
the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day to day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognized in Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
incurred.
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3.01.03 Depreciation

3.01.04

3.01.05

3.02

No depreciation is charged on freehold land and on capital work in progress. Depreciation is recognized in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on straight line method over the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation is charged from the month of addition when the
asset is ready for use and no depreciation is charged from the following month of deletion. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Assets Category Rates of depreciation (%)
Leasehold Land 3.5

Building 2.5-10

Plant and Machinery 7.5-10

Vehicle 20

Furniture and Fixture 5

Others facilities 7.5-25

Capital Work-In-Progress
Property, Plant and Equipment under construction/acquisition is accounted for and measured at cost as
capital work-in-progress until construction/acquisition is completed and it is ready for use.

Depreciation fund

i) Padma Oil Company Limited Depreciation Fund was formed on 28th Day of November 2019 as per
decision of The Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources vide memo no. 28.00.0000.029.01.
008.18.356 dated 24 December 2018 and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors in their the
meeting no. 453 held on 03 September 2019.

ii) The objective of the fund is to accumulate the depreciation charged to the assets of the company in
each financial year and use the fund for replacement of decrepitated Asset(s) / Procurement / acquisition
of new Asset(s) / new plant / new business and keep the fund in the Bank or in Government Securities.

iii) Five (5) percent of income of the fund will be distributed among the Employees & Workers who are in
active service of the company.

Consolidation of the Financial Statements of Padma Oil Company Limited Depreciation Fund has been
made with the Padma Oil Company Limited, Chattogram as per resolution the Board of Directors in their
the meeting no. 457 held on 28 November 2019.

Financial instruments
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The company initially recognizes accounts and other receivables on the date that they are originated.
Financial assets include accounts and other receivables, advances, deposits and prepayments, investment
in FDR and cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, accounts and other receivables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Deposits
At initial recognition, the Company measures security deposits at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, and that are subject to

an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3.03

3.04

3.05

3.05.01

3.05.02

(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized initially on the
trade date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expire. Financial liabilities includes liabilities and accounts and other payables.

Accounts and other payables

The company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are
certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources
embodying economic benefits.

Other liabilities
Other liabilities represents the amounts due to various parties for receiving services. These are initially
recognized at cost which is the fair value. After initial recognition these are carried at amortized cost.

Inventories

Major and minor petroleum products of BPC excluding Lubes and Greases are valued at net realizable value.
Lubes, Greases and Agro-chemical products are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Stocks of
stores and spares are valued at weighted average cost. Statutory charges (like Custom-duty or VAT) and
freight attributable to Stock-in-trade are carried forward and added to the value of the stocks. However, cost
comprises procurement cost and attributable overheads to bring the goods to their respective state at which
they were on the reporting date.

Impairment

Financial Assets

Financial assets are impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after initial
recognition of the assets and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
of that assets that can be estimated reliably.

Financial assets not classified as fair value through profit or loss, loans, receivables and investment in an
equity accounted investee are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Non Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if
the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the entity in exchange for service rendered by an employee.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Post employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits which are payable after the completion of employment. The
company maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees.

Defined contribution plan

The company has two contributory provident funds for its junior and senior executives which were recognized
on 30 June 1967 under the applicable Income Tax laws and regulations. Contribution to the fund is made
equally by employee and employer @ 10% of basic pay for eligible permanent employees. The said
funds are managed by duly constituted four member Board of Trustees. Assets of provident fund are held
in a separate Trustee Funds as per the relevant rules and is funded by payments from employees and by
the company. The company's contributions to the provident funds are charged as revenue expenditure in

the period to which the contributions relate.
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3.06

3.06.01

3.06.02

3.06.03

3.07

3.08

3.09

Defined benefit plan

The company maintains a funded gratuity/pension scheme. Contribution to gratuity/pension fund for
pension and/or gratuity benefits is made at the rate as determined on the basis of valuation certified by
an actuary after every three years.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

The company also account for provision of Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare funds (WPP & WF)
@ 5% of its profit before charging such expenses as per Labour Act 20086.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The company calculates its earnings per share in accordance with International Accounting Standard
IAS-33 “Earnings per Share” which has been reported on the face of Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income.

Basis of Earnings

This represents profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders. As there is no preference
dividend, minority interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered
fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

Basic Earnings Per Share

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted Earning Per Share

No diluted Earnings per share was required to be calculated for the year under review as there is no
scope for dilution of Earnings Per Share for the year.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position when the entity has a legal or contractual
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingencies
arising from claims, litigations, assessments, fine, penalties etc. are recorded when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Contingent assets are not recognized
in the financial statements.

Taxation

Current tax:

Income tax expense is recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Current
tax is the expected tax payable on the total income for the year using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted as of reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The company
qualifies as a publicly traded company; hence the applicable tax rate is 20.00% for the year.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax liabilities are the amount of income taxes payable in the future periods in respect of taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are the amount of income taxes recoverable in future periods
in respect of deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences of timing differences arising between the carrying values of assets, liabilities,
income and expenditure and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Statement of Financial
Position date. The impact of changes on the account in the deferred tax assets and liabilities has also been
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as per I1AS-12 “Income
Taxes”.

Revenue

In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 : Commission earnings from sales of petroleum products
are measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Commission on petroleum products
are determined by Government through official Gazette Notification issued from time to time. Revenue
from the sale of agro-chemical products is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.
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3.10

3.11

3.12

Revenue is recognized when the control and risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Other income
Other income - operating

Other income-operating includes land rent, service charges, filling and power station rent, POL products
handling, and interest income on delayed payment. Other operating income are recognized as revenue
income as and when accrued / realized.

Other income - non-operating

Other income-non-operating includes interest income from SND and FDR, profit on disposal of assets
and sale of scrap. Interest from FDR and SND are recognized when accrued while profit on disposal of
assets and sale of scrap are recognized as income when realized.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company's position at the date
of statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes when material.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements
in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less). For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore
the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the
costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the
lease.

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

At the derecognition of a lease, the right-of-use asset and associated lease liability are removed from the
books of the lessee. The difference between the two amounts is accounted for as a profit or loss at that

time.
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3.13 Segment Reporting

An operating Segment is a component of the company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components,
whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the company's management committee (being the chief
operating decisions maker) to make decision about resources allocated to each segment and assess its
performance.

The company discussed its' Segment wise performance under note- 31.03 to Financial statements.
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Takain'000

Note(s) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
5.00 Capital workin Progress
Opening Balance 1,122,845 659,834
Addition during the year 5.01 412,117 561,913
1,534,962 1,221,747
Transferred to property, plant and equipment during 4.00 (154,636) (98,902)
the year
Closing Balance 1,380,326 1,122,845
5.01 Details of Capital Work In Progress ( Taka in '000)
. Expenditure Transferred to .
. Opening . Closing
Particulars incurred property, plant
Balance . d Balance
during the year and equipment
Building 963,071 226,778 (5,962) 1,183,887
Plant & Machinery 153,069 175,416 (136,546) 191,939
Vehicles 2,205 1,709 (3,914) -
Furniture & Fixtures - 1,260 (1,260) -
Other Facilities 4,500 6,954 (6,954) 4,500
As at30 June 2023 1,122,845 412,117 (154,636) 1,380,326
As at30 June 2022 659,834 561,913 (98,902) 1,122,845
6.00 Investment - Depreciation Fund (FDR)
Name of banks
AB Bank Limited 82,766 50,000
Agrani Bank Limited 298,747 -
Bangladesh Commerce Bank Limited 54,964 52,012
Bangal Commercial Bank Limited 7,500 -
BASIC Bank Limited 122,137 232,016
Dhaka Bank Limited 253,163 181,350
Janata Bank Limited 764,950 535,942
NRB Bank Limited 30,540 -
NRB Global Bank Limited - 114,228
Premier Bank limited 251,070 216,748
Rupali Bank Limited 214,411 162,120
Trust Bank Limited - 121,580
Union Bank Limited - 109,225
2,080,248 1,775,221
*Investment- Depreciation Fund (FDR) has been categorized the non-current assets as per
management decision because the fund won't be encashed in near future. Tenure of the above FDRs
are 3-12 months and interest rate is 6.00% to 8.00%.
7.00 Investment - Long Term (FDR)
Name of banks
Agrani Bank Limited - 562,238
Bangladesh Krishi Bank Limited - 852,878
Exim Bank Limited 200,000 -
Janata Bank Limited - 2,900,102
Rupali Bank Limited - 1,666,983
Sonali Bank Limited - -
200,000 5,982,201
Tenure is 12 months, Interest Rate is 6.00% to 8.00%
8.00 Investment - Short Term (FDR)
Name of banks
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh - 743,695
Janata Bank Limited - 2,139,721
Rajshahi Krishi Unnoyon Bank Limited - 217,270
Rupali Bank Limited - 2,567,260
- 5,667,946

Tenure is 6 months, Interest Rate is 6.00% to 8.00%

©
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Takain "000

Note(s) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Inventories
Stock-In-Trade (Petroleum products) 9.01 20,369,321 14,228,359
Agro-chemical products 9.02 435,041 309,965
Stores 9.03 89,053 81,803
Packing materials 95,030 114,076
20,988,445 14,734,203
Stock-In-Trade - Petroleum products
Major products 31.00 19,203,662 13,622,892
Minor products 1,007,607 494,101
Freight 158,052 111,366
20,369,321 14,228,359
Agro-chemical products
Finished products 31.02 428,644 307,700
Raw material 2,023 2,023
In transit 4,374 242
435,041 309,965
Stores
In stock 89,053 81,672
In transit - 131
89,053 81,803
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable - Petroleum products* 16,850,870 17,542,569
Accounts receivable - Agro-chemical products** 50,629 60,897
16,901,499 17,603,466
Other receivables 1,073,136 1,263,545
17,974,635 18,867,011
Provision for bad debts against trade receivable 10.02 (134,897) (134,897)
17,839,738 18,732,114

* Accounts Receivable (Petroleum Products) includes outstanding Tk. 14,235,571,545 from Biman

Bangladesh Airlines. Which credit facilities were allowed with permission from BPC.

* Receivable against Agro-chemical trade is secured by Bank Guarantees.

Ageing of accounts receivables (Note-46.03)

Less than 6 months

6 months or above but less than 12 months
1 year or above but less than 2 years

2 years or above

Provision for Bad debts

2,371,660 1,956,341
274,365 1,821,502
722,985 1,355,674

14,470,728 13,598,597

17,839,738

18,732,114

Tk. 98,924,000 receivable from Khulna Newspaper Mills against dues and Tk. 35,973,000 receivable
from Bangladesh Air Force, Bangladesh Army and Bangladesh Navy relating to the years 1998-1999

and 1999-2000 were accounted for as doubtful debts in 2008 and 2009 respectively.
Due from Affiliated Entities / Companies (Note-37)

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 57,368,045 19,882,950
Eastern Refinery Limited 14,874 12,380
Eastern Lubricant and Blenders Limited 31,065 37,896
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Limited 10,747 293,577
Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited 6,287 6,286
Meghna Petroleum Limited 410,403 380,486
Jamuna Oil Company Limited 387,574 374,574

58,228,995 20,988,149

Detail related party disclosure has been provided under note 37 and ageing of due from afifiliated

entities/companies are presented under note 46.04.

Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments

Advances 12.01 219,941 108,189
Deposits 12.02 1,633,189 2,374,203
Prepayments 12.03 24,105 22,998
1,877,236 2,505,390

Advances
Advance to employees 12.01.01 59,672 72,266
Advance against expenses 12.01.02 160,269 35,923
219,941 108,189
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12.01.01 Advances to employees
Employees' car advances
Employees' personal accounts
Festival advances
House building advances
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Takain '000

Note(s) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
1,730 2,490

440 877

36,152 39,404

21,350 29,495

59,672 72,266

Advance to employees represents amount of advances recoverable in cash from employees by the

company.
Advances against expenses
Employees' travelling expenses
Contractors for supplies
Advance to carriers

12.01.02

523 629
15,050 18,976
144,696 16,318
160,269 35,923

Advances against expenses represents amount of advances to employees, various parties which will be

adjusted in the subsequent years.
12.02 Deposits
Long term deposits
Short term deposits
12.02.01 Long term deposits
Security deposits against telephone
Security deposits against electricity supply
Sundry security deposits
Security deposits against chemicals
12.02.02 Short term deposits
Deposits against franking machine
Deposits against duty
12.03 Prepayments
Insurance premium
Rent, rates and taxes
13.00 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand
Cash & cash equivalent in transit (Through Pay Order)
Cash at banks
Fixed deposit receipts

13.01 Cashin hand
Head office
Depot

13.02 Cash atbanks

Short notice deposit (SND)
Current account
Collection account

Dividend account

13.02.01 Shortnotice deposit (SND)
AB Bank Limited

Agrani Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

Brac Bank Limited

Citybank NA

Eastern Bank Limited

12.02.01 43,493 11,672
12.02.02 1,589,696 2,362,531
1,633,189 2,374,203

106 106

1,113 1,113

42,251 10,430

23 23

43,493 11,672

11 5

1,589,685 2,362,526

1,589,696 2,362,531

3,834 3,842

20,271 19,156

24,105 22,998

13.01 1,014 1,204
2,693,468 1,212,974

13.02 24,954,225 29,981,036
13.03 19,037,716 7,772,301
46,686,423 38,967,515

423 948

591 256

1,014 1,204

13.02.01 24,995,183 29,725,748
13.02.02 (106,517) 215,328
13.02.03 15,023 2,136
13.02.04 50,537 37,824

29,981,036

24,954,225

1,988,924 4,001,567
18,687 26,347
9,363 19,173
1,073,234 490,536
10,545 20,877
3,441,614 4,318,518
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Taka in '000

Note(s) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
HSBC 102,159 1,428,552
Janata Bank Limited 747,730 833,623
Mercantile Bank Limited 3,874,700 4,166,277
NCC Bank Limited 974,966 1,116,011
NRB Bank Limited 1,452,875 972,047
ONE Bank Limited 2,374,205 4,383,408
Prime Bank Limited 557,175 265,039
Pubali Bank Limited 656,893 1,841,202
Sonali Bank Limited 180,670 59,667
Standard Chartered Bank 21,624 118,677
Trust Bank Limited 1,172,888 1,094,702
United Commercial Bank Limited 6,336,931 4,569,525
24,995,183 29,725,748
13.02.02 Currentaccount
Brac Bank Limited - 1,308
Janata Bank Limited 13,157 30,132
Mercantile Bank Limited 247,443 11,149
ONE Bank Limited 4,872 159,164
Sonali Bank Limited 5 5
Standard Chartered Bank 124,900 13,570
Trust Bank Limited* (496,894) -
(106,517) 215,328

* The balance become negative due to uncleared cheque which has been cleared subsequently.

13.02.03 Collection account
Pubali Bank Limited 12,623 2,136
Janata Bank Limited 2,400 -
15,023 2,136
13.02.04 Dividend account
Standard Chartered Bank 50,537 37,824
50,537 37,824
13.03 Fixed depositreceipts (FDR)
Name of banks
AB Bank Limited 571,567 266,584
Agrani Bank Limited 1,196,588 -
Al Arafa Islami Bank Limited 81,817 101,952
Bangladesh Development Bank Limited 56,466 53,427
Bangladesh Krishi Bank 915,943 -
Basic Bank Limited - 107,921
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited 156,725 108,739
Dhaka Bank Limited 41,836 -
Exim Bank Limited 568,561 460,833
First Security Islami Bank Limited 217,210 412,774
IFIC Bank Limited 230,411 205,436
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 785,414 -
Janata Bank Limited 7,141,162 938,789
Global Islami Bank Limited 897,113 1,120,177
Mutual Trust Bank Limited - 50,000
National Bank Limited 81,844 -
NRB Bank Limited 52,755 50,000
ONE Bank Limited 92,911 50,000
Premier Bank Limited 1,106,031 1,624,488
Rajshahi Krishi Bank 228,819 -
Rupali Bank Limited 3,535,890 -
Social Islami Bank Limited 301,626 625,872
Southeast Bank Limited 40,000 -
Standard Bank Limited 125,265 -
Trust Bank Limited - 50,000
Union Bank Limited 611,762 1,495,309
United Commercial Bank Limited - 50,000
19,037,716 7,772,301

Tenure is 3 months, Interest Rate is 6.00% to 8.00%
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Takain' 000

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Share Capital

No. of Shares

Authorized capital:

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up capital:
1,275,000 1,275,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each fully paid up in cash. 12,750 12,750
1,225,000 1,225,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each fully issued as fully 12,250 12,250
paid-up bonus shares for consideration other than cash.
1,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 10,000 10,000
(stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 2 share for every 5
shares held.
1,400,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 14,000 14,000
(stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 2 share for every 5
shares held.
4,900,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 49,000 49,000
(stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for every 1 share
held on 31 January 2009.
19,600,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 196,000 196,000
(stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 2 share for every 1 share
held on 06 February 2010.
14,700,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 147,000 147,000
(stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for every 2 share
held on 12 May 2012.
22,050,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 220,500 220,500
(stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for every 2 share
held on 28 June 2012.
23,152,500 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 231,525 231,525
(35% stock dividend) held on 16 February 2013.
8,930,250 Ordinary shares of Tk.10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus 89,302 89,302
(10% stock dividend) held on 15 February 2014.
98,232,750 982,327 982,327
Classification of shares by holding
Class by number of shares No.of Holders No. of Shares Holding %
Less than 500 6,358 923,576 0.94
From 500 to 5,000 2,093 3,286,731 3.35
From 5,001 to 10,000 157 1,140,928 1.16
From 10,001 to 20,000 88 1,278,026 1.30
From 20,001 to 30,000 33 853,151 0.87
From 30,001 to 40,000 22 773,692 0.79
From 40,001 to 50,000 9 413,998 0.42
From 50,001 to 100,000 20 1,453,972 1.48
From 100,001 to 1000,000 46 12,565,877 12.79
From 1,000,001 and above 9 75,542,799 76.90
8,835 98,232,750 100
Composition of Shareholders
Name of shareholders As at30 June 2023 As at 30 June 2022 |
No. of Shares | | Holding % No. of Shares " Holding %
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 49,455,666 50.35 49,455,666 50.35
Public and Private Institutions 22,603,678 23.01 24,863,654 25.31
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 10,854,093 11.05 9,403,157 9.57
Foreign Investors 812,119 0.83 843,067 0.86
Individuals (Bangladeshi) 14,507,194 14.77 13,667,206 13.91
Total 98,232,750 100 98,232,750 100
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Takain'000

Note(s) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
15.00 Depreciation Fund Reserve
Opening Balance 269,896 187,669
Net surplus from investment 15.01 95,046 82,227
364,942 269,896
15.01 Surplus From Investment
Income from investment 128,250 108,194
Workers Profit Participation fund @5% (6,412) (5,410)
Portion of interest on WPPF & WF Loan (2,985) -
Audit Fees (46) -
118,807 102,784
Provision for Taxation @ 20% (23,761) (20,557)
95,046 82,227
16.00 Deferred taxliabilities
Deferred tax liability has been calculated below at the applicable tax rate on the difference between the
carrying value of Property, plant and equipment, their respective tax bases and provision for bad debts:
Opening balance 128,729 187,245
Provided / (adjusted) for the year (23,087) (58,516)
Closing balance 105,642 128,729
16.01 Reconciliation of Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
Takain '000
Carrying amount Taxable/
on the date of (Deductible)
Tax base
statement of temporary
financial position difference
Taka Taka Taka
As at 30 June 2023
Property, plant and equipment (except freehold
land) 1,545,301 882,195 663,106
Provision for bad debts against trade receivable (134,897) - (134,897)
528,209
Applicable tax rate 20%
Deferred tax liability/ (Assets) 105,642
As at30 June 2022
Property, plant and equipment 1,617,244 838,703 778,541
Provision for bad debts against trade receivable (134,897) - (134,897)
643,644
Applicable tax rate 20%
Deferred tax liability/ (Assets) 128,729
17.00 Long Term Loan
Loan Account - Storage Tank at GDL 110,078 110,078
Equity Account - Storage Tank at GDL 73,385 73,385
183,463 183,463

Long term liabilities represents fund from Govt. of Bangladesh (GOB) for the construction of 7000 MT Jet -
A-1 & 7000 + 8000 MT HSD Storage tanks at Godnail Depot. According to letter no
028.021.014.01.00.065.2011/ date 03.07.2012, Government released a loan of BDT 197,737,000 under
the terms of 40% convertible in equity & 60% as Long term loan @5% interest. However POCL returned

the unutilised portion of loan BDT 14,274,284 & thus approved loan was BDT 183,462,716.

18.00 Accounts payable

Other supplies -BPC 37,530,202 10,619,021

Other supplies - Others 13,620 36,210

Other charges 350,973 362,725
37,894,795 11,017,956

19.00 Supplies and expenses payable

Revenue charges-BPC 602,169 559,399
Revenue charges-Others 3,699,987 2,724,689

Duty, rates and taxes 68,320 88,414
Employees' remuneration 7,802 5,434
4,378,278 3,377,936
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20.00

21.00

21.01

21.02

22.00

22.01

22.02

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Taka in'000

Note(s) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Due to affiliated entities / companies (Note-37)
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 82,502,300 74,983,970
Meghna Petroleum Limited - 6,887
Jamuna Oil Company Limited 93,797 93,796
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Limited - -
Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited 11,704 30,717
82,607,801 75,115,370
Other Liabilities
Advance against sales from Customers and Agent 3,522,480 1,900,420
Employees' pension fund 21.01 93,184 136,814
Employees' fund-others (162,901) (6,648)
Security deposits 202,303 192,197
Tax deducted at source - 115
Employees' personal accounts * 77,538 59,179
Liabilities for Capital Expenditure 29,880 70,258
Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds 21.02 229,901 157,122
Others™** 1,768,547 1,775,407
5,760,932 4,284,863
* Amounts due to Managers and Officers of the company.
** Others included amount recieved from Eastern Refinery Limited against
lease land & during the year Tk 40,518,000 adjusted as rent. 1,458,639 1,499,157
Employees’ Pension Fund
Opening balance 136,814 114,859
Provision made during the year 263,228 313,781
400,042 428,640
Adjustment/Payment made during the year 306,858 291,827
Closing balance 93,184 136,814

Actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund was conducted as on 30 June 2016 and the report was issued on
24 January 2018. Past Service Deficits in the funds were estimated at Tk. 937,423,000 for Senior Staff and
Tk. 1,112,953,000 for Junior Staff as on 30 June 2016. To meet the past service deficit, the valuer
recommended to pay Tk. 450 million each year over the next five years and contribution of 14% of total
basic salary for Junior staff and 23.7% of total basic salary for senior staff each year in respect of current
service cost. The valuation was conducted by Z. Halim & Associates, a reputed Actuarial & Pension
Consultants in Bangladesh. Earlier, valuation was done as on 31 December 2013 by the same actuary.

Actuarial assumption: Rate

Salary growth 5%

Return on investment 6%

Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds

Opening balance 157,122 154,016

Add: Provided during the year 229,901 157,122

Less: Paid during the year (157,122) (154,016)

Closing Balance 229,901 157,122

Unclaimed dividend

Unclaimed cash dividend 22.02 50,071 62,975

Unclaimed fractional dividend - -

Interest on unclaimed dividend 648 39
50,719 63,014

Movement of Unclaimed Dividend

Opening balance 63,014 178,708

Dividend declared for the year 1,227,909 1,227,909

Dividend paid during the year (1,240,204) (1,343,603)

Closing balance 50,719 63,014

The Company has transferred an amount of Tk. 30,826,543 to capital market stabilization fund as per
notification no- BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-391/20/Admin/121 dated 14 January 2021 to fulfil the
requirement to transfer the unclaimed dividend remained unpaid for three (3) years or more.

Unclaimed cash dividend

Dividend outstanding for the years:

2022 20,177 -
2021 14,924 15,520
2020 14,970 15,343
2019 - 16,041
2018 - 16,071
50,071 62,975

Remaining unclaimed dividend on account of Individuals (Bangladeshi).
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Takain '000

Note(s)

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

23.00 Provision for income tax
Opening balance 202,122 325,921
Add: Provision made during the year 895,926 640,038
Less: Paid/adjusted with advance income tax 23.01 - (763,837)
Closing balance 1,098,048 202,122
23.01 Advance income tax
Tax deducted at source on supplying petroleum (U/S 89 ITA 2023) 570,072 345,700
Tax deducted at source on import (U/S 120 ITA 2023) 27,376 12,593
Tax deducted at source on interest on FDRs and SND (U/S 102 ITA 2023) 635,503 237,934
Advance tax paid (U/S 154 ITA 2023) - 36,000
1,232,951 632,227
Tax paid (U/S74 of ITO 1984 & U/S 173 of ITA 2023) - 131,610
1,232,951 763,837
23.02 Reconciliation of effective tax rate 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Rate Taka '000 Rate Taka ‘000
Profit for the year 4,368,126 3,142,441
Total income tax expenses 19.98% 872,839 18.51% 581,522
Factors effecting the tax charge:
Income tax using the company's domestic tax rate 20.00% 873,625 20.00% 628,488
Excess of tax depreciation over accounting depreciation  0.46% 20,055 0.37% 11,514
Adjustment for inadmissible expenses 0.05% 2,246 0.00% 36
Impact of temporary differences in deferred tax -0.53% (23,087) -1.86% (58,516)
19.98% 872,839 18.51% 581,522
24.00 Position of Pending Tax Assessments
(Refundable) /
Accounting Assessment Payable as per order Remarks
Year Year of Tax Department
Takain '000
2001-02 2002-03 117,594  Application of Rectification U/S 173 & waiting for verdict
in honourable High Court against assessement U /S 82C.
2002-03 2003-04 111,045 Application_of Rectification U/S 173 - AJCT reopened U/S
120 after tribunal order
2003-04 2004-05 97,610 Apphcatlon_of Rectification U/S 173 - AJCT reopened U/S
120 after tribunal order
2004-05 2005-06 37,901 U(S 83(2)/82c/ 156/ 159/ 83(2)/ 156 - Rectification of
mistake U/S 173
2005-06 2006-07 8,640 High court gave favorable verdict as POCL appealed in
Honourable High Court against assessment of DCT under
82C.
2006-07 2007-08 (13,572) Return submitted U/S 82BB
2007-08 2008-09 41,766  High court gave favorable verdict as POCL appealed in
Honourable High Court against assessment of DCT under
82C
2008-09 2009-10 (295) Return submitted U/S 82BB
2009-10 2010-11 - Return submitted U/S 82BB
2010-11 2011-12 (125,116) Return submitted U/S 82BB
2011-12 2012-13
To To - Return submitted U/S 82BB
2020-21 2021-22
2021-22 2022-23 608,702 Return submitted U/S 82BB




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

M M Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

25.00 Gross earnings on Petroleum Product

25.01

25.02

Turnover
Cost of goods sold
Gross Earnings

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Taka in'000
01 July 2022 to 01 July 2021 to
Note(s)
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
25.02 332,181,411 227,217,288
25.02 (329,565,029) (224,873,380)

2,616,382 2,343,909

Gross Earnings
iLMajorProducts %55 packaging  Handling ~ OPerational o ‘(’)‘S‘;‘ Netearnings Netearnings
HOBC 186,950 - (348) (80,630) 105,972 127,909
Jet A-1 ** 1,002,141 - (1,164) (130,436) 870,540 403,047
JP5 - - - - - -
MS 150,103 - (392) (92,863) 56,849 101,752
SKO 14,928 - (74) (14,253) 601 11,474
HSD 918,490 - (3,854) 61,317 975,952 844,499
LDO 1,028 - (1) - 1,027 450
FO 173,094 - (711) 104,712 277,095 150,376
LSFO 23,832 - (14) 1,113 24,931 30,073
JBO 875 - (7) (141) 727 1,632
MTT 1,803 - (16) 98 1,885 5,248
SBP 14,299 - (12) - 14,286 767
Sub Total 2,487,542 - (6,593) (151,084) 2,329,865 1,677,227
ii Minor Products
Lubs & Greases 109,348 (20,790) (6) - 88,553 490,403
LPG(Cylinders) 7,790 - (8) - 7,783 5,192
Bitumen 7,031 - (32) - 6,999 2,456
Other Products 4,671 - - - 4,671 6,614
Sub Total 128,840 (20,790) (45) - 108,006 504,665
Grand Total 2,616,382 (20,790) (6,637) (151,084) 2437,871 2,181,892
Turnover and Cost of Goods Sold
01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Quantity Turnover COSt:ofl%OOdS Quantity Turnover Cost:ofl%oods
i. Major Products MT, '000 Tk, '000 Tk, '000 MT, '000 Tk, '000 Tk, '000
HOBC 141 23,088,065 22,901,115 142 16,375,712 16,208,867
Jet A-1 ** 473 58,138,188 57,136,047 428 38,264,099 37,725,214
JP5 - - - - - -
MS 159 26,193,900 26,043,797 157 18,180,967 18,024,393
SKO 30 3,980,486 3,965,559 28 2,623,592 2,603,688
HSD 1,560 190,362,382 189,443,893 1,549 133,747,642 132,935,796
LDO 1 37,595 36,567 1 47,733 47,281
FO 288 25,518,999 25,345,905 196 13,623,797 13,539,479
LSFO 6 653,107 629,275 14 819,717 788,761
JBO 3 400,357 399,482 4 380,459 379,503
MTT 5 677,323 675,519 6 608,985 603,153
SBP 7 1,006,845 992,547 1 101,460 100,664
Sub Total 2,671 330,057,248 327,569,706 2,526 224,774,163 222,956,799
ii Minor Products
Lubs & Greases 2 1,070,775 961,427 4 1,655,472 1,143,237
LPG(Cylinders) 3 140,623 132,832 3 149,543 144,341
Bitumen 13 894,596 887,565 12 624,683 622,190
Other Products 0 18,169 13,497 - 13,427 6,813
Sub Total 18 2,124,163 1,995,323 19 2,443,125 1,916,581
Grand Total 2,689 332,181,411 329,565,029 2,545 227,217,288 224,873,380

**As per BPC/ARTHIK-33/08/695 POCL claims recovery of price differential amount from BPC due to Vat free sale to
international airlines. POCL has sold 535,910,390 Liters of JET A-1 & average price difference is BDT 13,022,622,477
which has been adjusted in cost of goods sold.

®
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Takain '000
01 July 2022 to 01 July 2021 to

Note(s)
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
26.00 Administrative, Selling and Distribution Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 26.01 1,394,650 1,427,084
Depreciation 4.00 217,926 216,338
Advertisement 6,749 7,481
Audit fees 253 253
Aviation Service fees paid to Shell 36.00 24,000 23,000
BPC service charges 894 875
Communication expenses 4,985 4,200
Directors’ fees and expenses 33.00 2,888 2,950
Entertainment 3,899 4,215
Fuel and power 109,308 67,012
Insurance 6,333 6,511
Legal and professional fees 3,829 2,927
Printing and stationery 12,715 12,888
Repairs and maintenance 26.02 69,081 79,656
Rent 50,724 42,622
Rates and taxes 14,897 8,952
Stores and spares 69,986 69,976
Travelling and conveyance 20,369 21,459
Other charges 26.03 180,571 169,069
2,194,057 2,167,468
26.01 Salaries, wages and benefits
Salaries, wages and bonus 517,786 475,356
Welfare and benefits 588,438 615,243
Contribution to pension fund 256,270 304,618
Contribution to provident fund 32,156 31,867
1,394,650 1,427,084
26.02 Repairs and maintenance
Plant and Machinery 41,449 47,794
Building 20,724 23,897
Others 6,908 7,965
69,081 79,656
26.03 Other Charges
Casual Labour wages 129,942 124,925
Common depot expenses (1/3 share) 9,162 3,948
CSR(Corporate Social Responsibility) 1,110 1,065
AGM expenses 2,739 2,424
Miscellaneous expenses 17,792 20,633
Security expenses (Police / Ansar) 19,826 16,074
180,571 169,069
27.00 Financial Expenses
Bank Charges 12,035 8,220
Interest expenses against product (BPC)* 174,096 165,195
Interest on WPPF & WF 59,728 76,270
Interest expense on Govt. Loan 5,504 -
251,364 249,685
* Interest expenses against product are charged by the BPC.
28.00 Other Operating Income
Sundry income 28.01 60,066 72,487
Profit from Product handling 507,425 479,421
Other charge recovery 509,953 227,189
Transaction Gain/(Loss)* 155,007 -
Miscellaneous receipts 16,871 10,933
1,249,321 790,030

* Sells Invoice of Jet fuel to foreign airlines made in both USD & BDT. Local agency of respective airlines paid the remittance in
BDT. Conversion rate difference of DRI date & settlement date are recognised as transaction gain/(Loss).
28.01 Sundry income - net

Land rent/plant hire/service charges from Eastern Lubricants and Blenders Ltd. 854 854
Rent receipts from Filling Station and Power Station 36,815 41,827
Service Charges receipts from Private Power Station 22,397 29,806
60,066 72,487
29.00 Operating Profit / (Loss) on Agro-Chemicals Trading
Sales 579,216 570,906
Costof Sales:
Product Cost 29.01 (343,913) (360,484)
Other Cost - direct 29.02 (84,382) (65,823)
(428,295) (426,307)
Gross Profit 150,921 144,599
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Takain '000
01 July 2022 to 01 July 2021 to

Note(s)  30june2023 30 June 2022
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 29.03 122,421 129,885
Depreciation 4.00 1,474 1,905
Stores and spares 2,907 2,174
Advertisement 167 133
Fuel and power 3,543 3,400
Travelling and conveyance 2,266 2,205
Rent 5,845 5,641
Insurance 673 684
Repairs and maintenance 29.04 457 698
Rates and taxes 1,367 1,212
Printing and stationery 3,019 734
Communication expenses 411 344
Entertainment 582 555
Other Charges 29.05 27,040 23,427
172,172 172,997
Operating profit / (loss) (21,252) (28,398)
29.01 Productcost
01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022
. Amount (Tk.) . Amount (TKk.)
Quantity (MT) in'000 Quantity (MT) in'000
Opening Stock 1,708 307,700 1,957 336,048
Purchased/ Manufactured 2,394 464,857 1,883 332,136
4,102 772,557 3,840 668,184
Closing stock 1,925 428,644 1,708 307,700
2,177 343,913 2,132 360,484
29.02 Other Cost-direct
Sales Promotion 54,330 43,758
Packages Cost 23,125 16,770
Freight 6,029 4,436
Handling of Products 898 859
84,382 65,823
29.03 Salaries, wages and benefits
Salaries, wages and bonus 63,823 70,472
Other benefits 48,600 48,287
Contribution to pension and PF 9,998 11,126
—_ 122,421 129,885
29.04 Repairs and Maintenance
Plant and machinery 233 355
Building 214 328
Others 10 15
457 698
29.05 Other Charges
Tranport Expenses 12,812 10,173
Casual Labour 12,503 11,479
Service Charge 1,000 1,000
Sundries 725 775
27,040 23,427
30.00 Non-Operating Income
Profit/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets (Petroleum trading) 106 (981)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (Agro-Chemical trading) - 20
Lease Rent 40,518 40,518
Interest on SND (Gross) for Agro Chemical Trading 10,000 10,000
Interest on SND (Gross) 1,886,258 1,275,270
Interest on FDR (Gross) 1,436,541 1,285,522
Disposal of Miscellaneous store 4,084 5,721
3,377,507 2,616,070
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31.02 Statementof Costof Sales (Product wise): (Quantity: MT)

Opening Stock Closing Stock Costof Sales
Name of the Products Qty | Tk.'000 | Qty | Tk.'000 | Qty | Tk.'000
Furadan 5G. 56 4,114 56 4,114 - -
Mipcin 75WP 9 6,966 15 16,251 7 7,080
Ripcord 10EC 40 26,688 32 24,952 72 51,007
Acrobat MZ 35 33,091 46 45,906 46 41,916
Roteluck 9% 8 1,304 7 1,180 1 124
Mukta Plus 313 36,754 232 26,478 354 35,107
Talstar 2.5EC 5 1,953 8 3,818 7 3,133
Haymancozeb 16 5,412 16 7,956 16 8,192
Haconazole 14 6,312 17 9,295 20 6,981
Mg Plus 179 4,737 336 9,891 387 7,310
Salubar Baron(Folieral) - 3 44 9,179 17 3,390
Regent 50SC 4 4,915 - 348 4 4,567
Haysulf DF 80% 59 5,180 118 13,701 123 13,801
Sulcox 50WP 15 9,432 7 4,461 8 4,971
Glyfocl 41SL 8 2,543 12 6,813 11 3,253
Opal 75EC 2 1,385 1 858 1 526
Haymidor 70WG - 792 - 761 - 31
Defence 35SC 5 2,855 9 7,496 7 5,265
Stroke 50EC 1 921 1 754 - 167
Arivo 10EC - - - - - -
Intripid 10SC - 18 - 12 - 6
Hayclaim 5SG 2 3,087 2 3,945 2 2,942
Accurator 69EW 1 408 - 246 - 161
Surpass20SC 1 2,081 - - 1 2,081
Novostar 56EC 1 970 10 11,453 7 7,903
Trigger 56EW 5 3,019 - - - 3,019
Ugent 63GR 206 19,450 180 17,628 126 12,321
Padma Chelate - 181 2 791 1 369
Piquat - 5 41 10,097 31 7,574
Soil Zip 246 3,057 259 3,051 329 4,366
Super Fast 7 5,287 11 10,018 8 7,688
Head Line Team 17 26,160 13 19,879 4 6,281
Saeta 1.8EC 14 8,716 10 6,398 4 2,318
Couger 6 11,955 8 15,279 3 6,376
Novofix 42WDG 9 4,487 2 1,203 7 3,284
Samar 75WP 7 12,006 6 10,992 4 7,014
Pithion 46.5EC 2 698 1 395 - 303
Padma Lambda 8 3,781 12 5,386 6 2,537
Primidor 3 6,916 2 2,359 1 4,557
Optimus 3 4,842 369 29,459 538 35,798
Stargate 394 28,942 1 2,652 - 1,327
Pidion 1 3,979 4 10,909 2 5,490
Benapore 12 SC - - 9 13,975 6 8,831
Revive 50SC - - 4 3,693 4 4,211
Talent 35WDG - - 4 34,850 1 5,475
Bisben 30WP - 228 11 17,143 1 1,257
Paceben 18WP 6 2,070 7 2,617 10 3,603
30 June 2023 1,708 307,700] 1,925 428,644 2,177 343,913
30 June 2022 1,957 336,048 1,708 307,700 2,144 360,484
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31.03 Operating Segment
The Company has several reportable segments, as described below, which are the company's strategic
business. The following summary describes the operations in each of the company's reportable segments:
Petroleum products : Includes the company's earnings from marketing of Petroleum products
Lubricating Oil & Grease: Includes the company's income from treading lubricating oil & grease.
Bitumen : Includes the company's earnings from marketing of bitumen.
LPG: Includes the company's earnings from marketing of LPG.
Agro-Chemicals products: Includes the company's income from trading imported Agro-Chemicals
products.
Performances are measured based on segment profit before tax, that are reviewed by the company's

management committee. Information regarding the result of each reportable segment is included below:

31.03.01 Information about reportable Segments:
Taka in '000
. . Agro-
Petroleum L_ubrlcatmg Bitumen LPG Chemicals Total
products |Oil & Grease
products

Turnover 330,075,417 1,070,775 894,596 140,623 579,216 332,760,627
Cost of goodssold (327,583,204) (961,427) (887,565) (132,832) (343,913) (329,908,942)
Other cost (6,593) (20,795) (32) £3))] (84,382) (111,809)
Operational
Gain/(Loss) (151,084) - - - - (151,084)
Operating r
Profit/(Loss) 2,334,537 88,553 6,999 7,783 150,921 2,588,792
Administrative,
selling and
distribution
expenses 2,194,057 - - (172,172) 2,021,884
Financial expenses (251,364) - - - - (251,364)

4,277,230 88,553 6,999 7,783 (21,252) r 4,359,313
Other operating
income -
petroleum trade 1,249,321 - - - - 1,249,321
Reportable Segment
Total Operating
Profit (2022-23) 5,526,551 88,553 6,999 7,783 (21,252) 5,608,634
Reportable Segment
Total Operating
Profit (2021-22) 56,718 490,403 2,456 5,192 (28,398) 526,372

Taka in ‘000

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

31.03.02 Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Total Operating Profit
Reportable Segment Total Operating Profit 5,608,634 526,372
Amount not related to reportable segments 31.03.03 3,147,606 2,458,948
Profitbefore tax 4,368,126 2,985,319
31.03.03 Amount Not Related to Reportable Segments
Non-Operating Income 30 3,377,507 2,616,070
Contribution to Worker Profit Participant & Welfare Fund (229,901) (157,122)
3,147,606 2,458,948

@
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31.04 Analysis of Packing Material Consumed (Agro-chemicals trading):

01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Qty. Tk. 000 Qty. Tk.000
Packing Materials Various 23,125 Various 16,770
23,125 16,770

31.05 Value of packing materials and stores & spares consumed (Agro-chemicals trading):

01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Tk.'000 % Tk.'000 %
Import 20,565 79 14,966 79
Indigenous 5,467 21 3,978 21

26,032 100 18,944 100
Packing Materials(31.04) 23,125 16,770
Store and Spares 2,907 2,174

26,032 18,944

31.06 Value of purchase/ Manufactured of Agro-Chemicals Products

01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Tk.'000 % Tk.'000 %

Import 443,855 90 311,522 90

Indigenous 49,317 10 34,614 10
493,172 100 346,136 100

Reasons for variance:
Quantity of production increase during the year due to market demand.

01 July 2022 01 July 2021
to to
30 June 2023 30 June 2022

32.00 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings attributable to the ordinary shareholders (Tk.) 3,495,287,442 2,403,797,275
(b) Number of ordinary shares at the end of the year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Basic earnings per share (EPS) TKk.35.58 Tk.24.47
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Details of Directors' fees & expenses paid during the year are as follows:

Gross Amount

Name of the Directors and Managing Director Net Amount VAT (Tk)
Mr. Md. Khairuzzaman Mozumder (Chairman) 56,000 8,400 64,400
Mr. Md. Mahabub Hossain (Ex. Chairman) 64,000 9,600 73,600
Mr Bashudev Gangguly (Independent Director) 120,000 18,000 138,000
Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque (Director) 120,000 18,000 138,000
Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim (Independent Director) 120,000 18,000 138,000
Mr. Kabirul Ezdani Khan (Director) 120,000 18,000 138,000
Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain (Director) 104,000 15,600 119,600
Mr. Nasir Uddin Akhter Rashid (Shareholder Director) 96,000 14,400 110,400
Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali (Director) 16,000 2,400 18,400
Mr. Suzadur Rahman (Director) 112,000 16,800 128,800
Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal (Ex. Managing Director) 64,000 9,600 73,600
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman (Managing Director) 48,000 7,200 55,200
1,040,000 156,000 1,196,000
Taka in '000

01 July 2022 to 01 July 2021 to
30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Directors' fees paid-gross 1,196 1,141
Meeting expenses 1,692 1,809
2,888 2,950
Remuneration of MD, Managers and Officers:
Taka in ‘000 Taka in ‘000
01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022
MD Managers Officers MD Managers Officers
Remuneration:
Salary, allowances and 2432 94,560 83,200 2217 96,919 82,689
House rent allowance:
House rent 1,202 24,870 44,300 1,192 25,219 45,266
Other utilities 380 7,120 7,890 379 7,396 8,071
1,582 31,990 52,190 1,571 32,615 53,337
Leave encashment 254 3,450 4,465 251 3,537 4,704
Provident fund 292 5,230 6,350 271 5,430 6,559
4,560 135,230 146,205 4,310 138,501 147,289
Number of Employees 1 44 165 1 53 175
House Rent The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are paid cash allowance.
Accommodation 6 Managers are provided with free furnished accommodation.
Transport The Managing Directors and Departmental Heads are provided with free use of Company's car
subject to limit.
Other Managers are paid cash assistance, subject to limit.
Officers are paid cash allowances.
Telephone Residential telephone for mainly Company's business- for Managing Director and Managers,
subject to limit.
Medical The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are provided with free medical facilities
according to company policy.
Insurance The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are provided with coverage for group insurance
according to the company policy.
Remuneration
The Directors other than the Managing Director, who is an ex-officio director, are not paid any remuneration except
for fees and expenses in connection with attending to Company's Board Meeting.
Employees

Number of Employees whose salary was Tk. 3,000 below
Number of Employees whose salary was Tk. 3,000 or above

879 930
879 930
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Takain'000

36.00

37.00

38.00

39.00

40.00

01 July 2022 to 01 July 2021 to
30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Expenditure in foreign currency at equivalent BDT

Aviation service fee to Shell International Petroleum Company Ltd. (SIPCL) 24,000 23,000
24,000 23,000

Related Party Transactions

During the year, the company carried out a number of transaction with related parties in the normal course of business
and on an arms length basis. The name of these related parties, nature of transactions and balance as at 30.06.2023 in
accordance with the provisions of IAS-24 are presented below:

. . . . Balance as on
Name of the Parties Relationship Nature of Transactions 30 June 2023
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation Parent Concern Multiple Business 82,502,300(Cr)
(BPC) 57,368,273(Dr)
Eastern Refinery Limited Subsidiary of BPC Product Refine 14,874(Dr)
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd. Subsidiary Company Blending of Products 31,065(Dr)
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Ltd. [Subsidiary of BPC Product Exchange 10,747(Dr)
Meghna Petroleum Limited Subsidiary of BPC Product Exchange 410’403(3?1
i
Jamuna Oil Company Limited Subsidiary of BPC Product Exchange 387,574(Dr)
93,796(Cr)
Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited Subsidiary of BPC Product Supply 6,286(Dr)
11,705(Cr)
Details of transactions
Name of the Parties Opening Balances l?rovuled [_\d]usted Closing
during the year ||during the year Balance
Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 74,983,970(Cr) 307,961,043 300,442,713 82,502,300(Cr)
(BPC) 19,882,950(Dr) 55,690,266 18,204,943 57,368,273(Dr)
Eastern Refinery Limited 12,380(Dr) 2,634 139 14,874(Dr)
Eastern Lubricants & Blenders Ltd. 37,896(Dr) 252,133 258,964 31,065(Dr)
Standard Asiatic Oil Company Ltd. 293,577(Dr) 1,272 284,102 10,747(Dr)
o 380,486(Dr) 30,330 413 410,403(Dr)
Meghna Petroleum Limited 6,887(Cr) ~ 6,887 Nill
. . 374,574(Dr) 13,915 914 387,574(Dr)
Qil C Limited
Jamuna Oil Company Limite 93,796(Cr) - - 93,796(Cr)
e iy 6,286(Dr) - - 6,286(Dr)
L fied Petrol Gas Limited
tdquified Fetrofeum has Limite 30,717(Cr) 119,248 138,261 11,705(Cr)
Contingent Assets
Interest realizable for delayed payment from BIMAN & BCIC 6,586,744 6,586,744
Claims realizable from Bangladesh Railway 32,774 32,774
Amount realizable from BPC on account of sale of Jet-A1 to the foreign Airlines. 43,589 43,589
6,663,107 6,663,107
Contingentliabilities
i) Guarantees issued by the company's bankers to third parties on counter
indemnities given by the company against the bankers limit at Tk. One Crore 32,023 901
secured by hypothecation over the company's inventories and book debts.
ii) Confirmed irrevocable letters of credit (net of margin) opened by the banks-
having bankers limit at Tk. 10 crores, secured by hypothecation over the 39,252 48,071
inventories and book debts of the company.
71,275 48,972
Capital Commitments
Authorized but not contracted 1,186,813 1,602,214
Authorized and Contracted for but not provided-pending execution 2,071,074 2,137,405
Order for local supplies services pending execution 37,353 79,348
3,295,240 3,818,967
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Takain '000
30 June 2023 30 June 2022

41.00 Netassetvalue per Share

The composition of Net Assets value per share is given below :

Net Assets Value on the reporting date (Taka) 19,986,752 17,719,374
Number of Ordinary shares at the end of year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary shares during the year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Net Asset Value (NAV ) per share Tk.203.46 Tk.180.38
42.00 Operating cash flow per share
The composition of Operating Cash Inflow/(Outflow)
value per share is given below :
i) Operating Cash Inflow/(Outflow) during the year (Tk) (5,107,208) 9,641,670
ii) Number of Ordinary shares at the end of year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Operating Cash Inflow / (Outflow) per share (Tk.51.99) Tk.98.15
43.00 Reconciliation of net income with cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 4,368,126 2,985,319
Adjustments:
Depreciations 219,400 218,243
Interest income (3,332,800) (2,570,792)
(Gain)/loss on sale of PPE (106) 961
1,254,621 633,731
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets:
Inventories (6,254,242) 1,064,415
Accounts receivable excluding FDR and SND interest 892,376 (1,749,231)
Due from affiliated companies (37,240,846) (4,564,285)
Accrued interest - 196,797
Advances, deposits and pre-payments 628,154 (2,296,139)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 26,876,839 (4,061,433)
Supplies and expenses payable 1,000,342 (383,589)
Due to affiliated companies 7,492,431 21,506,295
Other liabilities 1,476,068 58,945
(5,128,877) 9,771,775
Income Tax paid (1,232,951) (763,837)
Net cash flow from operating activities (5,107,208) 9,641,670
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The quantum of potential liability at the reporting date for the value of employees unutilized earned
leave has neither been ascertained nor any provision therefor been made in the financial statements.

Events after reporting period
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 07 November 2023 recommended 135% cash
dividend (Tk.132,61,42,125) @ Tk.13.50 per share for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Financial risk management

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. This note
presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of
capital. The company has exposure at the following areas of risk.

a) Credit risk

b) Liquidity risk

c) Market risk

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. In monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to their risk profile, i.e. their
legal status, financial condition, ageing profile etc. Accounts receivable are related to sale of petroleum
and agro-chemical produced. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position. Credit sales as compared to the
total sales are insignificant. Government institutions are allowed to purchase on credit.

Exposure to creditrisk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Takain'000
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Accounts receivables 17,839,738 18,732,114
Due from affiliated companies 58,228,995 20,988,149
Advance, deposit & prepayments 1,877,236 2,505,390
Cash and bank balance 46,686,423 38,967,515

Ageing of accounts receivables

124,632,392

81,193,168

Less than 6 months 2,371,660 1,956,341
6 months or above but less than 12 months 274,365 1,821,502
1 year or above but less than 2 years 722,985 1,355,674
2 years or above 14,470,728 13,598,597
17,839,738 18,732,114
Ageing of due from affiliated entities/ companies
Less than 1 year 54,046,902 17,624,295
1 year or above but less than 2 years 39,520 -
2 years or above but less than 5 years 19 19
5 years or above but less than 10 years 685,304 648,270
10 years or above 3,457,250 2,715,565
58,228,995 20,988,149
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46.06 Liquidity risk

46.07

46.08

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company's approach to manage liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Typically, the Company
ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial
obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial
obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity /fund to make the expected payment within due date.

The following are the contractual or legal maturities of financial liabilities :

Takain'000

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Liability for trading supplies and services 37,894,795 11,017,956
Liabilities for supplies and expenses 4,378,278 3,377,936
Customers' and agents' credit balances 3,522,480 1,900,420
Employee's pension fund 93,184 136,814

Employee's fund others (162,901) (6,648)
Security deposits 202,303 192,197
Tax deducted at source - 115
Employees' personal accounts 77,538 59,179
Liabilities for Capital Expenditure 29,880 70,258
Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds 229,901 157,122
Others 1,768,547 1,775,407
48,034,005 18,680,755

Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

Exposure to currency risk

There was no exposure to foreign currency risk on the reporting date.

46.09 Interestrate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. However the company do
not have any outstanding bank borrowings on the reporting date thus they are not exposed to any interest rate
risk. But the company has taken a loan from the Govt. of Bangladesh of BDT 110,078,000 with a fixed interest rate
of 5 %.

47.00 SignificantDeviation in Earning per Share (EPS):
Due to increase of Revenue and non-operating income during the year (2022-2023) as a consequence Earning Per
Share (EPS) increased comparing with the previous year.

48.00 Significant Deviation in Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS):
Net Operating Cash Flows per Share (NOCFPS) has been decreased mainly due to increase of cost of sale and
payment of suppliers as compared to the previous financial year.

49.00 GENERAL
Figures appearing in these accounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand taka.
Previous year's phrases & amounts have been restated and re-arranged, wherever considered necessary, to
conform to the presentation for the period under review.

o @ AR
Company Secretary Managing Director Director Director
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PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

(A Subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation)

Registered Office:
PADMA BHABAN, Strand Road, Sadarghat, Chattogram-4000, Bangladesh

Phone :02333354235, 02333364236, 02333357237, 02333357748,
02333357749 (PABX), Fax : 02333362368

e-mail: md@pocl.gov.bd, share@pocl.gov.bd, web: www.pocl.gov.bd



